
Minturn Planning Commission 
May 11, 2022 

Page 1 of 2

Planning Commission Agenda 

Wednesday May 11, 2022 – 6:30 PM 

Minturn Town Hall / Council Chambers 

302 Pine St Minturn, CO 

The agenda is subject to change, including the addition of items 24 hours in advance or the 

deletion of items at any time. The order and times of agenda items listed are approximate. This 

agenda and meetings can be viewed at www.minturn.org.  

MEETING ACCESS INFORMATION AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

This will be an in-person meeting with access for the public to attend in person or via the 

Zoom link included. Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82939163079 

Zoom Call-In Information: 1 651 372 8299 or 1 301 715 8592 Webinar ID: 829 3916 3079 

Please note: all virtual participants are muted. In order to be called upon and be unmuted, you 

will need to use the “raise hand” feature in the Zoom platform. When it’s your turn to speak, 

the moderator will unmute your line and you will have five (5) minutes for public comment. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: If you are unable to attend, public comments regarding any items on 

the agenda can be submitted to Madison Harris, Planner I, prior to the meeting and will be 

included as part of the record.  

1. CALL TO ORDER – 6:30 PM

2. ROLL CALL & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA Opportunity for amendment or deletions to the agenda.

4. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

5.1 April 26, 2022

6. PUBLIC COMMENT Citizens are invited to comment on any item not on the regular

Agenda subject to a public hearing. Please limit your comments to five (5) minutes per

person unless arrangements have been made for a presentation with the Town Planner.

Those who are speaking are requested to state their name and address for the record.

7. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS

8. APPOINTMENT OF THE VICE-CHAIR

1

http://www.minturn.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82939163079


Minturn Planning Commission 
May 11, 2022 

Page 2 of 2

9. DESIGN REVIEW AND LAND USE PUBLIC HEARINGS

9.1 146 North Main Street – The Saloon – Changes to Approved Plans p. 10
9.2 76 Meek – Wilson Residence – Changes to Approved Plans p. 27
9.3 386 Taylor Avenue – Major Residence – New Single Family Home p. 45
9.4 832 Main Street – Variance Request p. 76
9.5 165 Railroad Avenue – International Trade Center Building – Conditional Use Permit

Request p. 88 

10. PROJECTS AND UPDATES

10.1 Historic Preservation

10.2 Minturn North PUD

11. FUTURE MEETINGS

11.1 May 18, 2022 – Joint Town Council/Planning Commission Meeting

11.2 May 25, 2022

11.3 June 8, 2022

12. ADJOURN

2



 
Minturn Planning Commission 
April 26, 2022 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 

 

 

 

Planning Commission Official Minutes 

Tuesday April 26, 2022 – 6:30 PM 

Minturn Town Hall / Council Chambers 

302 Pine St Minturn, CO 

The agenda is subject to change, including the addition of items 24 hours in advance or the 

deletion of items at any time. The order and times of agenda items listed are approximate. This 

agenda and meetings can be viewed at www.minturn.org.  

 

MEETING ACCESS INFORMATION AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

This will be an in-person meeting with access for the public to attend in person or via the 

Zoom link included. Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83565273086 

 

Zoom Call-In Information: 1 651 372 8299 or 1 301 715 8592 Webinar ID: 835 6527 3086 

 

Please note: all virtual participants are muted. In order to be called upon and be unmuted, you 

will need to use the “raise hand” feature in the Zoom platform. When it’s your turn to speak, 

the moderator will unmute your line and you will have five (5) minutes for public comment. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: If you are unable to attend, public comments regarding any items on 

the agenda can be submitted to Madison Harris, Planner I, prior to the meeting and will be 

included as part of the record.  

 

1. CALL TO ORDER – 6:30 PM 

Lynn Teach called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. 

 

2. ROLL CALL & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Those present at roll call: Planning Commission Chair Lynn Teach and Planning 

Commission Members Michael Boyd, Elliot Hovey, and Jeff Armistead. 

Staff Members Present: Town Planner Scot Hunn, Town Manager Michelle Metteer, and 

Planner I Madison Harris. 

Note: Planning Commissioner Tom Priest is excused absent. 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA Opportunity for amendment or deletions to the agenda. 

Motion by Elliot H., second by Jeff A., to approve the agenda as presented. Motion passed 4-

0. 

Note: Elliot H. and Tom P. are excused absent. 
 

4. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

No Conflicts of Interest. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

5.1 April 13, 2022 

 
 

3

http://www.minturn.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83565273086


 
Minturn Planning Commission 
April 26, 2022 

Page 2 of 6 
 

5.1.1 Lynn T. amended page 7 of the minutes to add the correct Downtown Doers Group 

meeting date 

Motion by Elliot H., second by Jeff A., to approve the minutes as amended. Motion 

passed 4-0. 

Note: Tom P. was excused absent. 

 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT Citizens are invited to comment on any item not on the regular 

Agenda subject to a public hearing. Please limit your comments to five (5) minutes per 

person unless arrangements have been made for a presentation with the Town Planner. 

Those who are speaking are requested to state their name and address for the record. 

No Public Comment. 

 

7. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
Jeff A. said that the public fishing access signs will start going up around town as well as the 

signs for the ADA fishing spots. All of the circuits have been run at Little Beach Park and 

everything is ready for the poles and strings of lights to start going up.  

 

Lynn T. introduced Michael Boyd the new Planning Commissioner. 

 

Michael B. introduced himself. He is here to participate and help out as much as he can. 
 

8. DISCUSSION/DIRECTION ITEMS 
8.1 100 Block Design Standards – Cheney Bostic, Studio Seed 

Cheney Bostic introduced herself and Gabby Voeller and Carolyn McShea with SE 

Group who is heading the Community Plan Update. She gave a presentation over the 100 

Block. She is suggesting a 100 Block A and a 100 Block B. The setbacks are proposed to 

change.  

 

Elliot H. asked what defined a constrained lot. 

 

Michael B. pointed out that the fire code typically requires 5’ between buildings. 

 

Scot H. said it typically depended on fire ratings for building materials, but our code 

required 6’ between structures. 

 

Ms. Bostic continued her presentation talking about building height. Has taken the height 

for flat roofs down a little bit.  

 

Lynn T. suggested lowering the first floor height. 

 

Ms. Bostic continued her presentation talking about incentives.  

 

Michael B. likes the cash in lieu for the parking incentives, more towards residential than 

the commercial.  

 

Elliot H. asked who the “developer” was for the cash in lieu fee.  

4



 
Minturn Planning Commission 
April 26, 2022 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 Ms. Bostic clarified that it is change in use or a new development. 
 

Jeff A. is fine with the dimensional limitation changes with the exception of the 5’ to 3’ 

setback. Would like to look into that further. Fine with the bonus floor and the incentives. 

Would rather have a maximum for a first floor ceiling rather than a maximum. There 

should be a stated use for the funds generated for the cash in lieu. Has concerns about 

what happens if we implement this parking incentives, and then lose the Municipal Lot.  

 Ms. Bostic said that the fund could be used to purchase land for parking. 

 

Elliot H. asked about the Town acquiring the Muni Lot. He asked about increasing bus 

use.  

 Michelle M. stated that the Town was currently going through the formation of a 

Regional Transit Authority with the municipalities in the County as well as the 

County.  

 Scot H. pointed out that we are currently going through DCI. 

 

Michael B. has concerns with going higher and not requiring parking.  

 

Lynn T. agrees with Jeff A. on the parking. The incentive per parking space isn’t very 

much compared to land costs. Lynn T. has issue with the incentivized additional story. 

Would like to ensure that not every building takes advantage of the additional story. 

 Ms. Voeller stated that it takes decades to redevelop an entire area so it’s not like 

tomorrow will there be all three stories. 

 

Elliot H. is ok with the bonus floor height incentive as long as it isn’t obstructing views.  

 

Public Comment was opened. 

Krista Driscoll, 115 Nelson. 

All of these plans rely on a Municipal Lot that could not be there in the near future. 

Moving parking to south town doesn’t work. You have to be able to drive and park 

places, so unless transit greatly increases, having this be an incentive doesn’t seem fair. 

One developer owns half the downtown so redevelopment could take place sooner. 

Doesn’t want the downtown to be an urban center. Doesn’t agree with disregarding the 

sun shadow and ice. 

 

Larry Stone, 152 and 201 Main 

The reality is that we have to rely on sales tax for everything. Doesn’t believe we need to 

force residential to the second level. Believes 28’ should be higher. Has questions about 

the cut off of the zone district at Nelson.  

 

Ron Levin, 172 Main S 

The charrette outcomes are misleading. There is mostly residential on the east side of 

Main St. Without the incentives, no one is going to want to develop on the Eagle River 

side of the street. Having 15’ height on the ground floor is unrealistic. 

 

Ken Mintz, 167 Williams 

5



 
Minturn Planning Commission 
April 26, 2022 

Page 4 of 6 
 

Not addressing the future of Minturn, looking at band-aids. Can’t cram the business 

district into one block. The long term solution is to turn Williams into a pedestrian street 

and move the business district into the 2 and 300 blocks, spreading it out. Agrees with the 

comment about the Muni Lot. Disagrees with the 46’ height limit on the west side of 

Williams with the bonus story. Planning Commission should recommend to Council an 

extension of the moratorium.  

 

Ross Coleman, 962 Main 

Doesn’t understand why people are against making life a little easier. Would like to have 

more local amenities.  

 

Devin Schow, 115 Nelson. 

Williams is probably only 11’ wide which is tight for a fire truck. 291 Main has 

snowmelt which is the reason that doesn’t have ice accumulation. Toledo always has an 

ice problem. People drive the wrong direction on Williams at the peak parking hours. 

 

Ken Mintz, 167 Williams 

Doesn’t agree with the setback changes due to how tight the area is.  

 

Ron Levin, 172 Main. 

The house next to him is 35’ and so removing mass doesn’t do much. 

 

Public Comment closed. 

 

Elliot H. thanks everyone who spoke.  

 

Jeff A. thanked the public for commenting. Wished there were more people in Town who 

would participate in these discussions and the charrette and surveys. Likes that there was 

discussion of extending the commercial past the 100 Block. This will not be the only 

discussion on this topic.  

 

Lynn T. agrees with Jeff A. If more people can come in and give feedback, that would be 

great.  

 

Ms. Bostic went through the questions left over for the Planning Commission 

 

Lynn T. clarified the façade question. 

 

Jeff A. thinks we should replace Appendix B. Thinks we should be more prescriptive and 

descriptive in the language that governs the design guidelines. There should be more 

thought put into how to illuminate things properly. Public works should weigh in on the 

snow storage. The ideal is to have articulation of buildings. Balconies should not be able 

to project into a setback.  

 

Elliot H. thinks we need to tighten up the descriptions. 15’ ground floor minimum should 

not be required. The builder/owner should have the discretion. 

6



 
Minturn Planning Commission 
April 26, 2022 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 

Michael B. agrees with Jeff A. on the language. Wants lights that work. Doesn’t see the 

reason for a minimum height requirement for the first floor. 50’ façade is better. There 

shouldn’t be a penalty for people who heat their driveways or sidewalks.  

 

Note: 5 min. recess called at 8:40 pm. 

 

9. DESIGN REVIEW AND LAND USE PUBLIC HEARINGS  
9.1 Ordinance TBD – An ordinance of the Town of Minturn, Colorado amending Article 19, 

Chapter 16 Sign Regulations of the Minturn Municipal Code. 

Madison H. introduced the ordinance. The goal of this code amendment is to allow the 

sign code to be more flexible and proportionate to the building frontage rather than a one 

size fits all. Upon further review of the proposed language concerning signs for multi-

tenant buildings, she asked the Planning Commission to consider adding a clause that 

stated if a tenant in a building wanted to go over the 40 allowable square feet, then all 

the tenants or owners of the building should be allowed to sign off on that with the 

understanding that the entire building would still be held to the maximum limitation, 

either that or allow each business to operate like a single tenant building and it generates 

a first come first serve situation for who can use the allotted signage first.  

 

Scot H. explained the sign backing clause that was added. He explained what a Master 

Sign Program is. 
 

Owners of the building should make the determination on multi-tenant buildings.  

 

Jeff A. said that artwork should not be a sign. 

 

Public comment. 

 

Larry Stone, 201 Main 

In the case of an HOA, is it the owner(s) who sign off on it or is it the HOA?  

 

Public comment closed.  

 

Lynn T. would like to remove flashing from page 6 clause (d) 

 

Motion by Jeff A., second by Elliot H., to approve Ordinance TBD – An ordinance of 

the Town of Minturn, Colorado amending Article 19, Chapter 16 Sign Regulations of 

the Minturn Municipal Code with the following changes. Motion passed 4-0. 

1. Change multi-tenant buildings to allow for more than 40 sq. ft. per tenant with 

permission from the property owner not to exceed the total signage limit imposed on 

the building 

2. Strike flashing and varying intensities of light from 16-19-120 (d)  

Note: Tom P. is excused absent. 

 

10. PROJECTS AND UPDATES  
10.1 Historic Preservation 

7



 
Minturn Planning Commission 
April 26, 2022 

Page 6 of 6 
 

Town Staff have been working with Attorney Terry Gorrell and Town Attorney Mike 

Sawyer on the draft Historic Preservation Ordinance. The Historic Preservation 

Committee will be reviewing the updated draft ordinance on April 28, 2022. Staff will 

then take the feedback from the Committee meeting and generate a final draft for 

starting the adoption process. It is staff’s hope that this will be before the Planning 

Commission in June of 2022. 

10.2 Planning Commissioner Appointment 

The Town Council discussed at their meeting on April 20, 2022 how they would like to 

fill the vacancy on the Planning Commission. They decided that Alternate Elliot Hovey 

will be promoted to a full time Planning Commission member, and that staff should start 

the advertising process for an open alternate position. Any candidates that apply will be 

interviewed at the June 1, 2022 Council meeting. 

 

11. FUTURE MEETINGS  

11.1 May 11, 2022 

11.2 May 18, 2022 – Joint Town Council/Planning Commission Meeting 

11.3 May 25, 2022 

 

12. ADJOURN  

Motion by Michael B., second by Elliot H., to adjourn the regular meeting of April 26, 2022 at 

9:17 pm.  Motion passed 4-0. 

Note: Tom P. is excused absent. 

 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Lynn Teach, Commission Chair 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Scot Hunn, Planning Director 

 

 

 

8



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION MEMO 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

Date:  May 6, 2022 

 

To:  Minturn Planning Commission 

 

From:  Madison Harris, Planner I 

 

Re:  Appointment of Planning Commission Vice Chair 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

While it does not happen often, sometimes there are unavoidable conflicts where the Planning 

Commission Chairperson cannot make the scheduled meeting. Appointing a Vice Chair allows 

that person to run the meeting in the Chair’s stead. There are no pre-qualifications that the Vice 

Chair has to have, such as number of years sitting on the Planning Commission. This 

appointment is a vote by the Planning Commission members. 

Minturn Planning Department 

Minturn Town Center 

301 Boulder St. #309 

Minturn, CO 81645 

970-827-5645 

planner1@minturn.org 

www.minturn.org  

Minturn Planning Commission 

Chair – Lynn Teach 

Jeff Armistead 

Michael Boyd 

Elliot Hovey 

Tom Priest 

 

9

mailto:planner1@minturn.org
http://www.minturn.org/


To: Planning Commission

From: Madison Harris, Planner I

Date: May 6, 2022

Re: 146 North Main Street - The Saloon - Changes to Approved Plans

Nick Brechtel, representative of 146 North Main Street - The Saloon, received approval from the
DRB on March 9, 2022 for exterior modifications to the building. Upon further review with the
property owner, certain elements of the approved plans have been changed.

Per the Applicant’s letter of intent, the following is a description of the proposed changes:

“The only change we are making is moving the door and windows on the south end of the
west facade. The door will be moved to the north slightly and the two windows will be
moved to the south of the door.”

Staff believes that the proposed modifications are minor in nature and will not change the
project’s conformance with the applicable standards of Chapter 16 – Zoning, or Appendix ‘B’ –
Design Standards and Guidelines of the Minturn Municipal Code.

Staff is recommending approval.

1

10



5/6/22, 1:55 PM https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/209ceeb6-4e13-41c0-b5ff-f73c5af34392/details?ipr=1

https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/209ceeb6-4e13-41c0-b5ff-f73c5af34392/details?ipr=1 1/5

Design Review Application

Submission Info

User 50.211.252.105

Submission Id 209ceeb6-4e13-41c0-b5ff-f73c5af34392

Start Date 4/19/2022 10:03:27 AM

Receipt Id 186330280

IP Address 50.211.252.105

Receipt Date 4/19/2022 11:08:44 AM

Status Submitted

Workflow Completed Date

Submitted Date 4/19/2022 11:08:44 AM

Response Data

Town of Minturn - Design Review Application - Project Information

Section Title: Project Information

Is this a Minor or Major DRB Project?:
Major

Project Name:
Minturn Saloon

Street Address:
146 N Main St

City:
Minturn

State:
Colorado

Zip:
81645

Zoning:
024 - MINTURN (TOWN) - 024

Application Request:
Change to approved plans- Window layout and door at Bar side of building will be moved to accompany new vestibule
layout on inside. Door will be moved to be adjacent to interior demising wall that separates bar and dining (near the
middle of the building). The two proposed windows that flanked the door on either side will be moved towards the
south side.

11



5/6/22, 1:55 PM https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/209ceeb6-4e13-41c0-b5ff-f73c5af34392/details?ipr=1

https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/209ceeb6-4e13-41c0-b5ff-f73c5af34392/details?ipr=1 2/5

Town of Minturn - Design Review Application - Applicant Information

Section Title: Applicant Information

Name:
Nick Brechtel

Mailing Address:
2077 N Frontage Rd W

City:
Vail

State:
CO

Zip:
81657

Phone:
9704766342

Email:
nick@vailarchitects.com

Is the Property Owner different than the Applicant?:
Yes

Town of Minturn - Design Review Application - Property Owner Information

Section Title: Property Owner Information

Name:
Los Amigos - Property Company LLC

Mailing Address:
245 Park Ave FL 44

City:
New York

State:
NY

Zip:
10167-4400

Phone:
970 376 2823

Email:
anthonymazza.cc@gmail.com

12



5/6/22, 1:55 PM https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/209ceeb6-4e13-41c0-b5ff-f73c5af34392/details?ipr=1

https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/209ceeb6-4e13-41c0-b5ff-f73c5af34392/details?ipr=1 3/5

Town of Minturn - Design Review Application - Additional Information

Section Title: Additional Information

Lot Size:
.208

# of Stories:
1

Type of Residence:

Snow Storage (sq ft):

# of Bedrooms:
0

Building Footprint (sq ft):
3371

# of On-site Parking Spaces:
17

Total Impervious Surfaces (sq ft):
4563

Town of Minturn - Design Review Application - Uploads

Section Title: Submittal Checklist Requirements (as applicable)

Letter of Intent:
4.19.22 DRB.pdf

Vicinity Map:
Saloon Access DRB.PNG

Improvement Location Certificate of Survey (ILC or ILS):
Minturn Saloon Property Survey 2005.pdf

Site Plan:
PAA - 4.19.22 DRB Site Plan.pdf

Preliminary Building Plans and Elevations:
PAA - 4.19.22 DRB Set.pdf

Town of Minturn - Design Review Application - Applicant Review & Signature

Minor DRB Fee:
$75.00

13

https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/e1ebc651-b16a-47c5-9b48-1217efc16087/document/056e08d1-fd07-4ecc-995d-4c137f63c1f0
https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/e1ebc651-b16a-47c5-9b48-1217efc16087/document/1fee4c39-28d2-4a3c-9b0d-6e45f31f8cbf
https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/e1ebc651-b16a-47c5-9b48-1217efc16087/document/50ca4368-ddf6-4486-8486-3e730cdaf717
https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/e1ebc651-b16a-47c5-9b48-1217efc16087/document/8ccb89b1-bbc7-42d8-bfa7-699e9ff4b126
https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/e1ebc651-b16a-47c5-9b48-1217efc16087/document/0f3cd0fe-239b-4cf8-b389-f1e3ae76e695


5/6/22, 1:55 PM https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/209ceeb6-4e13-41c0-b5ff-f73c5af34392/details?ipr=1

https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/209ceeb6-4e13-41c0-b5ff-f73c5af34392/details?ipr=1 4/5

Major DRB Fee:
$200.00

Section Title: Applicant Signature

I declare under penalty of perjury in the second degree that the statements made in the above application are true
and complete to the best of my knowledge.:
true

Signature:
Nick Brechtel

Date:
04/19/2022

Data Fields

Name Nick Brechtel

Address1

Address2

City

State

Zip

Phone

Email nick@vailarchitects.com

CompanyName

14



This is an application to make a change to approved plans. The only change we are making is
moving the door and windows on the south end of the west facade. The door will be moved to
the north slightly and the two windows will be moved to the south of the door.

15



16



COMMON PATH OF TRAVEL PERMITTED: 75'-0" MAX.
COMMON PATH OF TRAVEL PROVIDED: XXX

COMMON PATH OF TRAVEL

EXIT TRAVEL DISTANCE PERMITTED: 200'-0" MAX.
EXIT TRAVEL DISTANCE PROVIDED: XXX

EXIT TRAVEL DISTANCE

OCCUPANCY GROUP: ASSEMBLY (A-2)
TOTAL FLOOR AREA: 3626 SF

(A-2) CONCENTRATED (7 SF NET) =   260 SF / 38 PERSONS
(A-2) UN-CONCENTRATED (15 SF NET) = 1435 SF / 96 PERSONS 
(A-2) KITCHEN (200 GROSS) =   461 SF /   3 PERSONS
(A-2) STORAGE (300 GROSS) =   220 SF /   1 PERSONS
TOTAL = 138 PERSONS

OCCUPANT LOAD

ELEVATION

A101
1

SIM

100'-0"

SPOT ELEVATION

1

A101

SIM

DETAIL NUMBER

SHEET WHERE SHOWN

SECTION LETTER

SHEET WHERE SHOWN

DETAIL DESIGNATOR

BUILDING SECTION DESIGNATOR

101

DOOR DESIGNATOR

1i WINDOW DESIGNATOR

0
GRID LINE

WALL TYPE

1
REVISION NUMBER

LEVEL INDICATOR

NAME 

INTERIOR ELEVATION DESIGNATOR

A601

1 ELEVATION NUMBER

SHEET NUMBER

DOOR NUMBER

ROOM NUMBER

EXTERIOR ELEVATION DESIGNATOR

A301

1 ELEVATION NUMBER

SHEET NUMBER

00 00 00

CONSTRUCTION 
SPECIFICATION INSTITUTE 
SECTION NUMBER - REFER 
TO PROJECT MANUAL FOR 
PRODUCT SPECIFICATION

4'-5"

FACE OF STRUCTURE TO 
FACE OF STRUCTURE 

N

PROJECT NORTH

W4-5.

Room name

101

°

±

Ф W/

<

ROUND WITH DEGREES

PLUS OR MINUS PROPERTY LINE ANGLE

CENTER LINE

THESE PLANS WERE DESIGNED TO CONFORM WITH THE LATEST 
INTERNATIONAL BUILDING AND RESIDENTIAL CODES.  DUE TO 
CONTINUOUS CHANGES IN BOTH LOCAL AND NATIONAL BUILDING CODES, 
ACCOMMODATING ALL BUILDING RESTRICTIONS IS IMPOSSIBLE.  
THEREFORE, THESE PLANS ARE SUBJECT TO LOCAL REQUIREMENTS AND 
INTERPRETATIONS.  IT BECOMES THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BUILDER 
TO MAKE CERTAIN THESE PLANS COMPLY TO LOCAL CODE 
REQUIREMENTS.

DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS. IF CRITICAL DIMENSIONS DO NOT APPEAR ON 
THE DRAWINGS, NOTIFY ARCHITECT. IF DISCREPANCIES OCCUR BETWEEN 
DRAWINGS OR BETWEEN THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS, NOTIFY 
THE ARCHITECT FOR RESOLUTION.SQUARE FOOTAGES ON PLANS EQUAL 
GROSS FOR BUILDING DEPARTMENT USE ONLY. NOT TO BE USED FOR 
SALES OR LEASEABLE AREAS.

DIMENSIONS LOCATING NEW CONSTRUCTION ARE TO THE FACE OF THE 
FRAMING AND CONCRETE OR CENTERLINE OF STRUCTURE BY WAY OF 
GRID LINE UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

DETAILS AND NOTES INDICATE TYPICAL CONDITIONS. FOR MINOR 
DEVIATIONS FROM TYPICAL DETAILS ARE TO BE ANTICIPATED AND ARE 
INFERRED. DETAILS AND NOTES PROVIDE DIRECTIONS AND OUTLINE THE 
DESIGN INTENT. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL USE PROFESSIONAL 
JUDGEMENT WHEN DEALING WITH SIMILAR CONDITIONS.

EVERY EFFORT HAS BEEN MADE TO ELIMINATE ERRORS DURING THE 
PREPARATION OF THESE DRAWINGS.  BECAUSE PIERCE AUSTING 
ARCHITECTS CANNOT GUARANTEE AGAINST THE POSSIBILTY OF HUMAN 
ERROR, IT IS THE OBLIGATION OF THE BUILDER TO VERIFY THE ACCURACY 
OF ALL DETAILS AND DIMENSIONS.

THE PLANS, DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS, DESIGNS, AND ENGINEERING 
HAVE BEEN DEVELOPED BY PIERCE AUSTIN ARCHITECTS SOLEY FOR ITS 
USE IN PREPARING AND SUBMITTING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS.  
PIERCE AUSTIN ARCHITECTS MAKES NO WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, 
LIABILITY, OR RESPONSIBLITY WHATSOEVER FOR THE PROPRIETY, 
EFFICACY, OR FITNESS OF SUCH WORK WHEN USED BY ANY OTHER 
PARTY FOR ANY OTHER PURPOSE, EXCEPT WHEN COVERED BY PIERCE 
AUSTIN ARCHITECTS WARRANTIES AND PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY 
OBLIGATIONS ACCOMPANYING ITS OWN CONTRACTS.

OWNER: LOS AMIGOS - PROPERTY COMPANY LLC
245 PARK AVE FL. 44
NEW YORK, NY 10167-4400

ARCHITECT: KIT AUSTIN, PRINCIPAL 
PIERCE AUSTIN ARCHITECTS
2077 N FRONTAGE RD W, SUITE G
VAIL, COLORADO 81657
P: 970.476.6342
E: kit@vailarchitects.com

CONTRACTOR: ROCKY MOUNTAIN CONSTRUCTION GROUP
JONNY COHEN
100 E. MEADOW DR. UNIT 6
VAIL, CO 81657
P: 970.476.4458
E: jonny@rockymountainconstructiongroup.com

STRUCTURAL : COMPANY
NAME
MAILING ADDRESS
TOWN STATE ZIP
P: 555.555.5555
E: person@example.com

CIVIL: COMPANY
NAME
MAILING ADDRESS
TOWN STATE ZIP
P: 555.555.5555
E: person@example.com

MEPs: AVID ENGINEERING
MARTIN ZOUREK
11101 W 120th AVE #240
BROOMFIELD, CO 80021
P: 303.993.3192
E: martin@avidengineering.com

BUILDING CODE: 2018 International Building Code
2018 International Residential Code
2018 International Fire Code
2018 International Plumbing Code
2018 International Mechanical Code
2018 International Fuel Gas Code
2018 International Energy Conservation Code
2018 International Existing Building Code
2017 National Electrical Code

CONSTRUCTION TYPE: V-A

OCCUPPANCY TYPE: A-2

FIRE SPRINKELD : NO

2077 N Frontage Rd W, Unit G
Vail, Colorado 81657  

(970)476-6342

NOT F
OR 

CONSTRUCTIO
N

M
IN

T
U

R
N

 S
A

L
O

O
N

P
ro

je
c
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

-
2
1
9
1

1
4

6
 M

A
IN

 S
T

 M
IN

T
U

R
N

, 
C

O

A0.00

COVER

2.8.22

ISSUE TYPEADMINISTRATIVE INFO.

BUILDING CODE SUMMARY   

PROJECT DIRECTORY

Situs Address 146 N MAIN ST
Tax Area 024 - MINTURN (TOWN) - 024
Parcel Number 2103-263-08-002
Legal Summary Section: SUBDIVISION: BOOCO Block: B Lot: 5 AND:- Lot: 6, 
Together w/ 20'x50' of Land Adjoining South End of Lots 5 & 6

MINTURN, CO 
81657

PROJECT LOCATION

LIFE SAFETY

DRAWING CONVENTIONS

MISC. ABBREVIATIONS

GENERAL NOTES

SHEET INDEX

SHEET # DESCRIPTION
ISSUE
DATE

A0.00 COVER 2.8.22

A0.02 LIFE SAFETY 2.8.22

A0.05 EXISTING SURVEY 2.8.22

A0.06 SITE PLAN 2.8.22

A1.00 ROOF PLAN 2.8.22

A1.01 LEVEL 1- DEMO 2.8.22

A1.11 LEVEL 1 RCP 2.8.22

A2.01 NORTH ELEVATION 2.8.22

A2.02 EAST ELEVATION 2.8.22

A2.03 SOUTH ELEVATION 2.8.22

A2.04 WEST ELEVATION 2.8.22

A4.01 ENLARGED WOMEN'S ROOM 2.8.22

A4.02 ENLARGED MEN'S ROOM 2.8.22

A4.03 ENLARGED BAR 2.8.22

A4.04 ENLARGED KITCHEN 2.8.22

A6.01 WINDOW AND DOOR SCHEDULE 2.8.22

A9.01 3D- BAR 2.8.22

A9.02 3D- KITCHEN 2.8.22

A9.03 3D- WOMEN'S ROOM 2.8.22

A9.04 3D- MEN'S ROOM 2.8.22

DATE NO. DESCRIPTION

U
PD

ATE

17



18



19



INDICATES EXISTING STORAGE/ PATIO/ COVERED WALKWAY

INDICATES EXISTING INTERIOR SPACE

*SURVEY BY OTHERS

2077 N Frontage Rd W, Unit G
Vail, Colorado 81657  

(970)476-6342

NOT F
OR 

CONSTRUCTIO
N

M
IN

T
U

R
N

 S
A

L
O

O
N

P
ro

je
c
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

-
2
1
9
1

1
4

6
 M

A
IN

 S
T

 M
IN

T
U

R
N

, 
C

O

A0.06

SITE PLAN

2.8.22

ISSUE TYPE

NORTH

DATE NO. DESCRIPTION

20



2077 N Frontage Rd W, Unit G
Vail, Colorado 81657  

(970)476-6342

NOT F
OR 

CONSTRUCTIO
N

M
IN

T
U

R
N

 S
A

L
O

O
N

P
ro

je
c
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

-
2
1
9
1

1
4

6
 M

A
IN

 S
T

 M
IN

T
U

R
N

, 
C

O

A1.00

ROOF PLAN

2.8.22

ISSUE TYPE

NORTH

DATE NO. DESCRIPTION

21



UP

2

2

Vent Hood

2

UP

A B C D

1

2

3

4

17 EXISTING PARKING SPACES PROVIDED

F
IR

E
P

L
A

C
E

23
'-3

"

32'-5"

4'
-6

"

WOMENS' MENS'

A4.04
1

Sim

TYP.
2

TYP.
10

TYP.
11

TYP.
5

TYP.
3

TYP.
8

TYP.
7

TYP.
6

TYP.
4

TYP.
12

TYP.
9

TYP.
1

TYP.
13

1

A3.01

2

A3.01

1

A1.61

1

A3.03NEW WINDOWS

LARGER WINDOWS

NEW DOOR

3'-7 1/4"

2'
-7

 1
09

/2
56

"

10
'-0

"

3'
-0

"
1'

-8
"

TYP.
14

1

A3.04

2'
-0

"

1'-6" 1'-6"

2'-6"

unit heater

NEW DOOR

1

A6.01

Sim

2

A6.01

Sim

NEW  WALLS

EXISTING WALLS

WALLS TO BE 
DEMOLISHED

DEMO LEGEND

2077 N Frontage Rd W, Unit G
Vail, Colorado 81657  

(970)476-6342

NOT F
OR 

CONSTRUCTIO
N

M
IN

T
U

R
N

 S
A

L
O

O
N

P
ro

je
c
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

-
2
1
9
1

1
4

6
 M

A
IN

 S
T

 M
IN

T
U

R
N

, 
C

O

A1.02

LEVEL 1-
PROPOSED

12/01/21

ISSUE TYPE

1/4" = 1'-0"
1

LEVEL 1- PROPOSED

KEYNOTE LEGEND

KEY
VALUE KEYNOTE TEXT

1 CLASSIC BAR TO BE RELOCATED BEHIND NEW EXTENDED BAR

2 SHED ROOF OVER WOOD STORAGE

3 54" SILL HEIGHT @ PASS THROUGH

4 JOHN WAYNE BOOTH- NEW PULL OUT TRUNDLE STAGE BELOW

5 WAIT STATION @ HALF WALL

6 WALK- IN FREEZER

7 WALK- IN REFRIGERATOR

8 DRY STORAGE

9 NEW FIREPIT @ PATIO

10 FLOORING @ BAR AREA TO HAVE LINOLEUM REMOVED

11 FLOORING @ DINING AREA TO BE RESURFACED

12 13' X 10' POP UP STAGE W/ MIRROR BEHIND

13 PROTECT- ALL FLOORING

14 42" TALL DRINK COUNTER

DATE NO. DESCRIPTION

22



LEVEL 1
8000' - 0"

1234

ROOF
8029' - 0"

EXIST ROOF TO BE REPAIRED/ REPLACED SAME

LEVEL 1
8000' - 0"

1234

ROOF
8029' - 0"

101 102 103 104

NEW WINDOWS

2077 N Frontage Rd W, Unit G
Vail, Colorado 81657  

(970)476-6342

NOT F
OR 

CONSTRUCTIO
N

M
IN

T
U

R
N

 S
A

L
O

O
N

P
ro

je
c
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

-
2
1
9
1

1
4

6
 M

A
IN

 S
T

 M
IN

T
U

R
N

, 
C

O

A2.01

NORTH
ELEVATION

2.8.22

ISSUE TYPE

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

NORTH ELEVATION EXISTING

1/4" = 1'-0"
2

NORTH ELEVATION

DATE NO. DESCRIPTION

23



LEVEL 1
8000' - 0"

A B C D

ROOF
8029' - 0"

LEVEL 1
8000' - 0"

A B C D

ROOF
8029' - 0"

1

A3.04

2077 N Frontage Rd W, Unit G
Vail, Colorado 81657  

(970)476-6342

NOT F
OR 

CONSTRUCTIO
N

M
IN

T
U

R
N

 S
A

L
O

O
N

P
ro

je
c
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

-
2
1
9
1

1
4

6
 M

A
IN

 S
T

 M
IN

T
U

R
N

, 
C

O

A2.02

EAST
ELEVATION

2.8.22

ISSUE TYPE

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

EAST ELEVATION EXISTING

1/4" = 1'-0"
2

EAST ELEVATION

DATE NO. DESCRIPTION

24



LEVEL 1
8000' - 0"

LEVEL 2
8010' - 0"

1 2 3 4

ROOF
8029' - 0"

LEVEL 1
8000' - 0"

LEVEL 2
8010' - 0"

1 2 3 4
ROOF

8029' - 0"

2077 N Frontage Rd W, Unit G
Vail, Colorado 81657  

(970)476-6342

NOT F
OR 

CONSTRUCTIO
N

M
IN

T
U

R
N

 S
A

L
O

O
N

P
ro

je
c
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

-
2
1
9
1

1
4

6
 M

A
IN

 S
T

 M
IN

T
U

R
N

, 
C

O

A2.03

SOUTH
ELEVATION

2.8.22

ISSUE TYPE

1/4" = 1'-0"
1

SOUTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"
2

SOUTH ELEVATION EXISTING

DATE NO. DESCRIPTION

25



LEVEL 1
8000' - 0"

ABCD

ROOF
8029' - 0"

LEVEL 1
8000' - 0"

ABCD

ROOF
8029' - 0"

RECESS BUILT OUT FLUSH WITH EXISTING FACADE NEW VESTIBULE @ EXT.

ENLARGED WINDOWS

NEW WINDOWS

001 002 003 004

3068

ADA
32

TO
 R

E
M

A
IN

TO REMAIN

TO REMAINTO REMAIN

1

A3.04

2077 N Frontage Rd W, Unit G
Vail, Colorado 81657  

(970)476-6342

NOT F
OR 

CONSTRUCTIO
N

M
IN

T
U

R
N

 S
A

L
O

O
N

P
ro

je
c
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

-
2
1
9
1

1
4

6
 M

A
IN

 S
T

 M
IN

T
U

R
N

, 
C

O

A2.04

WEST
ELEVATION

2.8.22

ISSUE TYPE

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

WEST ELEVATION EXISTING

1/4" = 1'-0"
2

WEST ELEVATION

DATE NO. DESCRIPTION

26



 

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Design Review Board Hearing 

__________________________________________________________ 

 
Wilson Residence Garage Renovation - Revisions to Approved Plans 

 

76 Meek Avenue 

 

 

Hearing Date:  May 11, 2022 

File Name and Process: Garage Renovation - Revisions to Approved Plans 

Owner/Applicant:  Paul and Sherri Wilson 

Representative:  Tom Warzecha 

Legal Description:  Lot 39, Block 1, Baldauf Addition 

Address:   76 Meek Avenue 

Zoning:   Old Town Character Area – Residential Zone District 

Staff Member:  Scot Hunn, Planning Director 

 

Recommendation:  Approval, with Conditions 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Staff Report 
 

I. Summary of Request: 

  

The Applicants, Paul and Sherri Wilson, request review of revisions to previously approved plans 

for a garage renovation at their existing residence located at 76 Meek Avenue.  

 

The DRB approved plans in August 2021 allowing for the demolition of an existing, attached 

garage and the rebuilding of the garage in essentially the same, attached location. However, due 

to the Applicant’s reliance on an erroneous survey during the first review of plans, the previously 

approved plans (tear down and rebuild) will not work without violating the Town’s setback and 

nonconformities regulations. The Applicants are now proposing to rebuild and renovate the garage 

in the same location as the existing garage and using existing foundation and exterior walls to 

allow vertical construction but specifically to not permit any further lateral expansion. 

 

 

Minturn Planning Department 
Minturn Town Center 
302 Pine Street 
Minturn, Colorado 81645 

Minturn Planning Commission 
Chair – Lynn Teach 

Jeff Armistead 
Michael Boyd 

Elliot Hovey 
Tom Priest 

27



 

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 2 

 

Proposed Plans 

The plans presented to the DRB in August 2021 showed the removal of an existing two-car garage 

structure and the reconstruction of a new two car garage structure on the west side of the existing 

single-family home. The previously approved plans showed a proposed garage height of eleven 

(11’) to the mid-point of the roof above existing grade, with a maximum height of thirteen (13’) 

feet measured from existing grade to the ridge of the roof.  Also shown on the original plans was 

the addition of a new master bathroom in an area previously covered by the existing garage. This 

bathroom addition was more akin to a reconfiguration of existing habitable space and was not 

proposed expand any exterior walls or to add any additional building lot coverage. 

 

Parking was deemed adequate during the DRB’s August 2021 review, with two spaces provided 

within the garage, and one space in front of the garage. Such details have not changed. 

 

The subject property is unique in that it fronts on three streets (Boulder to the east, Meek to the 

South, and Pine to the West). Per the Town of Minturn Municipal Code, the front yard/lot line is 

the side of the lot fronting along Meek due to the placement of the front door and entrance. 

Therefore, side lot lines – and side yard setbacks - are prescribed along the Boulder and Pine sides 

of the property. 

 

As referenced above, the Applicants (and the Town) relied upon an erroneous survey while 

developing and reviewing the Applicant’s plans. Therefore, the Applicants are now proposing a 

similar renovation but are no longer proposing to tear down the garage; rather, they propose to 

renovate using the existing foundation/footprint and exterior walls to allow for renovation without 

expanding or exacerbating pre-existing nonconformities (encroachments into to side and rear-yard 

setbacks). 

 

That being said, the plans submitted do show “new walls” on the floor plans (Sheet A1.01). The 

Applicant should provide additional information or details as to how the renovation will be 

completed using existing exterior walls, as the removal of existing nonconforming walls that 

currently violate side and rear setbacks (and wholesale replacement of those walls to support the 

garage addition and roof) is not permissible. 

 

II. Summary of Process and Code Requirements: 

  

Although the plans were previously approved, this revision is to be treated as a final plan level of 

review. No variances are required or requested at this time but this review does include an analysis 

of the Town’s nonconformities regulations. 

 

Applicable Definitions 

The following definitions from Article 2 – Definitions, Minturn Municipal Code, are relevant 

to this review: 

Yard, front means that portion of a yard between the street line and the front door of 

the building and between the two (2) side lot lines, the depth of which shall be the least 

distance between the front lot line and the building. 

 

28



 

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 3 

 

Yard, side means all the yard between the front and rear yards, the width of which shall 

be the least distance between the side lot lines and the building. 

 

Design Review Process 

Appendix ‘B’ of the Minturn Municipal Code, Section 16-21-615 - Design Review 

Applications, subsection “d” below outlines the criteria and findings necessary for DRB review 

and approval of all new, major development proposals: 

 

(d) Administrative procedure. 

 

(1) Upon receipt of a completed and proper application, the application for Design 

Review will be scheduled for a public hearing. The hearing will be conducted in 

accordance with the procedures set forth in this Chapter. 

 

(2) Criteria and findings. Before acting on a Design Review application, the Planning 

Commission, acting as the Design Review Board (DRB), shall consider the 

following factors with respect to the proposal: 

 

a. The proposal's adherence to the Town's zoning regulations. 

b. The proposal's adherence to the applicable goals and objectives of the 

Community Plan. 

c. The proposal's adherence to the Design Standards. 

 

(3) Necessary findings. The Design Review Board shall make the following findings 

before approving a Design Review application: 

 

a. That the proposal is in conformance with the Town zoning regulations. 

b. That the proposal helps achieve the goals and objectives of the Community 

Plan. 

c. That the proposal complies with the Design Standards. 

 

Staff suggests that the updated final plans for 76 Meek meet or can be revised to meet the 

required findings ‘a,’ ‘b,’ and ‘c’ of subparagraph 3 – Necessary findings. 

 

Section 16-22-30 - Nonconforming uses and structures 

The previously approved plans showed proposed improvements located entirely within the lot 

setbacks. However, after approval and prior to building permit review, the Applicants discovered 

that the survey used for planning purposes was incorrect and that the approved plans could not be 

accomplished without exacerbating pre-existing nonconformities (without expanding existing 

encroachments into side and rear yard setback areas). The Applicant inquired as to whether they 

could still renovate and rebuild portions of the existing garage using the existing footprint and 

garage walls (see attached letter of intent by Applicant).  

The Minturn Municipal Code, Section 16-22–30 - Nonconforming uses and structures provides 

the following: 

29



 

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 4 

 

(a) Except as specifically provided in this Section, no person may engage in any activity 

that causes an increase in the extent of nonconformity of a nonconforming situation. In 

particular, physical alteration of structures or the placement of new structures on open 

land is unlawful if such activity results in: 

 

(1) An increase in the total amount of space devoted to a nonconforming use; or 

(2) Greater nonconformity with respect to dimensional restrictions, such as setback 

requirements, height limitation or density requirements, or other requirements 

such as parking requirements. 

 

III.  Zoning Analysis: 

 

Zoning 

The subject property is located within the “Old Town Character Area” Residential Zone District, 

described as follows: 

 

(a) The neighborhood is bisected by Highway 24 and is characterized by single-family 

residences with a mix of business and institutional uses. The residences are typically 

one (1) and two (2) stories, with outbuildings and minimal setback between 

structures. 

(b) The purpose of this zone is to provide for continued residential use and redevelopment 

that preserves the unique character and scale of the neighborhood. An objective is to 

retain the historically residential areas as quiet and safe neighborhoods while allowing 

for limited home-based occupations and home-based businesses to encourage 

permanent residency. This area can accommodate reasonable growth where land and 

services are available.” 

 
      - Town of Minturn Town Code Section 16-6-20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Space intentionally left blank) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

30



 

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 5 

 

Figure 1: Old Town Character Area Zoning Map 

 

 
 

 

Dimensional Limitations and Development Standards 

The following tables summarize the lot, development and dimensional standards and limitations 

applicable to Lot 2 pursuant to Section 16-2-40. - General lot requirements and dimensional 

standards; Section 16-16-20 – Parking Required for Residential and Lodging Uses; and Section 

16-6-80 - Old Town Character Area Limited Use Standards. 

 

Regulation Allowed/Required Proposed/Existing 

Minimum Lot Area: 5,000 sq. ft. 5,000 sq. ft. 

Maximum Building Height: 28 feet 13 feet 

Minimum Front Setback: 10 feet 10 feet 

76 Meek Ave 

31



 

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 6 

 

Minimum Side Setback: 5 feet 0 feet 

Minimum Rear Setback: 10 feet 3 feet 

     

Maximum Building Coverage: 45% (2,250 sq. ft.) Existing: 2,165.11 sq. ft. (43%) 

Proposed: 2,178 sq. ft. (44%) 

Maximum Impervious 

Coverage: 

55% (2,750 sq. ft.) Existing: 2,203 sq. ft. (44%) 

Proposed: 2,216 sq. ft. (44%)  

Minimum Snow Storage Area: 5% of Parking Area 

(15.69 sq. ft.) 

Unknown 

   

Parking: 3 spaces 3 spaces 

        

 

 Note: the above calculations are based on the following: 

 

Lot 39= .115 acres x 43,560 sq. ft./acre = 5,000 sq. ft. 

313.81 sq. ft. parking area x .05% = 15.69 sq. ft. (Required Snow Storage) 

 

 

IV. Applicable Standards and Design Guideline Criteria: 
 

In addition to the development standards listed above, the following general design principles are 

provided for reference. 

 

Overall Design and Nonconformity 

The design guidelines encourage designs that integrate or account for snow storage and snow shed 

from roof structures, along with ensuring that the orientation of buildings relative to solar access, 

to street frontages, and in relation to neighboring properties is considered. The existing lot 

dimensions and the location of the home on the lot are dictating the location of the new garage. 

 

The subject property is relatively flat and the previously approved design was deemed to take 

advantage of and comply with the existing site constraints. However, due to an error in surveying, 

the previous plans showed the garage being demolished and reconstructed entirely within the 

setbacks. The correct survey work shows the existing garage in violation of the side and rear yard 

setback. Additionally, a small portion of the existing garage roof overhang appears to encroach 

over the side property line.  

 

Because of this situation, the Applicant is asking to reconstruct the garage in the same location 

using the existing garage footprint and exterior walls - going up but not expanding the garage 

footprint laterally - as has been done in other instances in the Town of Minturn (449 Pine Street 

and 414 Eagle River Street).  

 

However, the plans submitted do show “new walls” on the floor plans. The Applicant should 

provide additional information or details as to how the renovation will be completed using existing 

exterior walls, as the removal of existing nonconforming walls that currently violate side and rear 

32



 

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 7 

 

setbacks (and wholesale replacement of those walls to support the garage addition and roof) is not 

permissible. 

 

V. Staff Recommendation and Suggested Conditions: 
 

Staff suggests that the Final Plans for 76 Meek Avenue, as conditioned, generally comply with 

applicable provisions and/or minimum standards of Chapter 16 and the Town of Minturn Design 

Standards (Appendix ‘B’) of the Minturn Town Code. 

 

Staff is recommending approval of the revised final plans the following suggested conditions of 

approval: 

 

1. Applicant shall update plans prior to or concurrent with any building permit application to 

verify and confirm that existing exterior walls and building foundation are to remain in 

order to comply with the Town’s nonconformities regulations. 

2. The Applicant shall provide a land survey plat(s) to the Town during construction of the 

garage renovation - at framing and prior to any Temporary Certificate of Occupancy 

Inspection by the Town Building Inspector - including spot elevations at exterior walls, 

building corners, and roof overhangs (at the eave line) to ensure that the project does not 

expand or exacerbate existing nonconformities.  

3. The Applicant shall show all snow storage inside their property lines. 

33



34



35



EXISTING RESIDENCE
GARAGE

SD1

#         REVISION DATE                                          INITIAL

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

ISSUE:

M
IN

T
U

R
N

, C
O

L
O

R
A

D
O

 8
16

45

76
 M

E
E

K
 S

T
R

E
E

T

W
IL

SO
N

 G
A

R
A

G
E

 R
E

M
O

D
E

L

JOB NUMBER:

36



DOOR SCHEDULE

MARK

WD HGT

SIZE

DOOR

Style

FIRE

RATING

LABEL

NOTES

WINDOW SCHEDULE

MARK

WIDTH HEIGHT

SIZE

Style Sill Height NOTES

EXISTING MAIN LEVEL

GARAGE

NEW
MASTER
BATH

A1.01

#         REVISION DATE                                          INITIAL

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

ISSUE:

M
IN

T
U

R
N

, C
O

L
O

R
A

D
O

 8
16

45

76
 M

E
E

K
 S

T
R

E
E

T

W
IL

SO
N

 G
A

R
A

G
E

 R
E

M
O

D
E

L

JOB NUMBER:

37



A2.01

#         REVISION DATE                                          INITIAL

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

ISSUE:

M
IN

T
U

R
N

, C
O

L
O

R
A

D
O

 8
16

45

76
 M

E
E

K
 S

T
R

E
E

T

W
IL

SO
N

 G
A

R
A

G
E

 R
E

M
O

D
E

L

JOB NUMBER:

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 1

Design Review Board Hearing
__________________________________________________________

Final Plan Review for New Home

386 Taylor Street
______________________________________________________________________________

Hearing Date: May 11, 2022
File Name and Process: Single-Family Residence Final Plan Review
Owner/Applicant: Nowhere in Minturn, LLC
Representative: Michael Pukas, MPP Design Shop, Inc.
Legal Description: Subdivision: DBC Subdivision Lot: 7A
Address: 386 Taylor Street
Zoning: Game Creek Character Area Residential Zone District
Staff Member: Madison Harris, Planner I
Recommendation: Approval, with Conditions
______________________________________________________________________________

Staff Report

I. Summary of Request:

The Applicants request Final Plan review of a new, four-bedroom, 3,205 square foot single-
family residence located at 386 Taylor Street in the Game Creek Residential Zone District.
Although the DRB has not reviewed any conceptual plans, the Applicant s representative, 
Michael Pukas, has been proactive in meeting with Town staff prior to submitting plans for a 
new home and has provided a relatively complete and thorough set of site, landscaping, and 
architectural plans allowing staff to conduct a final plan level review of the project.

Proposed Plans
The plans show a three-level structure with a max height measured to the midpoint of the roof
of 27.8125 feet above proposed grade on the east side of the lot and a max height of 27.66 feet 
on the west side of the lot, as the lot steps up and the house follows the slope of the lot. The 
height of the proposed structure appears to be within the maximum 28-foot allowable within
the Game Creek Residential Zone District.

Minturn Planning Department
Minturn Town Center
302 Pine Street
Minturn, Colorado 81645

Minturn Planning Commission
Chair Lynn Teach

Jeff Armistead
Elliot Hovey

Tom Priest
Michael Boyd

45



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 2 

 

Additionally, the massing, forms, and scale of the proposed structure, as well as proposed 
exterior materials, textures and detailing also appear to achieve the design objectives of 
Appendix B  Design Guidelines and Standards.  

 
Parking is adequate, with four off-street spaces provided (two in the garage and two surface 
spaces in front of the garage).  

 

below, the project appears to m  
 
Staff believes that the Applicants and their representative have provided a complete, 
detailed set of plans necessary to complete a thorough final plan review. 
 
As a reminder, the Planning Commission has the option to review the proposal as a 

 plan review if the Commission feels that the plans are not sufficient or are in need 
of revisions and additional review prior to final plan approval; or, the Commission may take 
action to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the Final Plans. 
 
Staff is recommending approval, with conditions. 

 
II. Summary of Process and Code Requirements: 
  
This is a final plan-level of review for a new single-family residential structure on a legally 
created lot within the Town of Minturn. This is a formal hearing providing the Applicant and 
staff the opportunity to discuss the proposal with the Planning Commission, acting as the 

 suggested 
revisions to the project. 

 
If the DRB feels that the plans are complete, appropriate, and meet the intent and purposes of 
the Minturn Municipal Code, Chapter 16, the DRB has the option to take final action to approve 
or approve with specific conditions and giving the Applicant and staff clear direction on any 
recommended revisions to the plans. 

 
No variances are required or requested at this time. 
 
Design Review Process 

Section 16-21-615 - Design Review Applications, 
 below outlines the criteria and findings necessary for DRB review and approval 

of all new, major development proposals: 
 

(d) Administrative procedure. 
 

(1) Upon receipt of a completed and proper application, the application for 
Design Review will be scheduled for a public hearing. The hearing will be 
conducted in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Chapter. 

 

46



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 3 

 

(2) Criteria and findings. Before acting on a Design Review application, the 
Planning Commission, acting as the Design Review Board (DRB), shall 
consider the following factors with respect to the proposal: 

 
a. The proposal's adherence to the Town's zoning regulations. 
b. The proposal's adherence to the applicable goals and objectives of the 

Community Plan. 
c. The proposal's adherence to the Design Standards. 

 
(3) Necessary findings. The Design Review Board shall make the following 

findings before approving a Design Review application: 
a. That the proposal is in conformance with the Town zoning regulations. 
b. That the proposal helps achieve the goals and objectives of the 

Community Plan. 
c. That the proposal complies with the Design Standards. 

 
Staff suggests that the final plans for 386 Taylor Street meet or can be revised to meet the 
required findings  or subparagraph 3  Necessary findings. 

 
III.  Zoning Analysis: 
 
Zoning 
The subject property is located within the Game Creek Character  Residential Zone 
District, described as follows: 
 

(a) The Taylor Avenue neighborhood is characterized by a traditional lot-and-
block layout with single-family residences. The residences are typically one 
(1) and two (2) stories, without buildings and good views to the west. The 
existing residential neighborhood overlooks the rail yard or the Game Creek 
PUD Holding Zone.  

(b) The purpose of this area is to provide for continued residential use and 
redevelopment that preserve the small town residential character and scale 
of the neighborhood. An objective is to retain the residential areas as a quiet 
and safe neighborhood while allowing for accessory apartments and limited 
home-based occupation to encourage permanent residency.  

- Town of Minturn Town Code Section 16-12-20 

47



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 4 

 

 
Figure 1: Game Creek Character Area Zoning Map 

 
Dimensional Limitations and Development Standards 
The following table summarizes the lot, development and dimensional standards and 
limitations applicable to the subject property pursuant to Sections 16-2-40. - General lot 
requirements and dimensional standards and 16-16-20  Parking Required for Residential and 
Lodging Uses. 

 
Regulation Allowed/Required Proposed/Existing 
Minimum Lot Area: 5,000 sq. ft. 5,922 sq. ft. (.175 ac.) 
Maximum Building Height: 28 feet 27.8125 feet  
Minimum Front Setback: 20 feet 20 feet  
Minimum Side Setback: 5 feet 5 feet 
Minimum Rear Setback: 10 feet 10+ feet 
     
Maximum Lot Coverage: 40% (2,369 sq. ft.) 1,615 sq. ft. (27.27%) Proposed 
Maximum Impervious 
Coverage: 

50% (2,961 sq. ft.) 2,256 sq. ft. (38.10%) Proposed 

Minimum Snow Storage 
Area: 

5% of Driveway  
(674 sq. ft. x .05 = 33.7 sq. ft.) 

223 sq. ft. 

   

386 Taylor Street 

48



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 5 

 

Parking: 3 spaces 4 spaces
        

 
Note: the above calculations are based on the following: 

 
Lot 7A = .175 acres x 43,560 sq. ft./acre = 5,922 sq. ft.  

674 sq. ft. parking area x .05% = 33.7 sq. ft. (Required Snow 
Storage) 

 
IV. Applicable Standards and Design Guideline Criteria: 
 
Design 
In addition to the development standards listed above, the following general design principles are 
provided for reference. 

 
Final Site, Grading and Drainage Design 
The design guidelines encourage designs that integrate or account for snow storage and snow 
shed from roof structures, along with ensuring that the orientation of buildings  to street 
frontages and neighboring properties  is considered.  

 
The proposed design maintains the structure within required setbacks, thus allowing for full use 
of side yard areas for snow shed and drainage. Likewise, the site plan and final grading and 
drainage details generally demonstrate that proper (positive) grading will be directed in swales 
away from the structure; that drainage is handled on the subject property.  

 
Mass and Form 
The following excerpt from the Design Guidelines is applicable to the proposed home design: 

 
 Massing and Scale 

 

A simple central form with additive features shall be designed. This style 
creates visual interest and is appropriate for the community due to its 
compatibility with existing structures. Buildings and improvements should 
complement, rather than overpower, the adjacent natural and built environment. 
Homes are encouraged to be sheltering in nature, with consistent setbacks from 
the street with prominent porches or overhanging eaves. 
 
Building mass, form, length and height shall be designed to provide variety 

and visual interest while maintaining a scale that is similar or compatible to 
adjacent structures.  

-Town of Minturn Design Guidelines 
 

Staff Response: 
Staff believes that the design and scale of the proposed structure incorporates a simple central 
form with additive features and is complimentary to adjacent single-family residential 
structures and character on nearby parcels. Staff further suggests that the scale of the project is 
appropriate and will not overpower surrounding natural and built environments. Proposed roof 

49



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 6 

 

forms and pitches, materials and textures are compatible and complimentary to the surrounding 
built and natural environments. While the roof eave does encroach into the front and side 
setbacks at certain points, Sec. 16-2-50(k) allows the roof eave up to eighteen (18) inches into 
these setbacks. 

 
V. Issues and Areas of Non-Conformance: 
 

Issues or Required Plan Revisions 
The following issues or areas of refinement have been identified by staff that must be 
addressed prior to any building permit submittal: 

Exterior Light Fixtures 
The plans should be updated to show exterior light locations. Light fixtures and 
lighting solutions are to be dark sky compliant. 

 
Staff referred this final plan to the Town Engineer (Inter-Mountain Engineering) for 
comments, but has not received comments. These will be included in the public 
record at the hearing, and any comments will need to be addressed prior to or 
concurrent with the building permit process.  
 

VI. Staff Recommendation and Suggested Conditions: 
 
Staff suggests that the Final Plans for 386 Taylor Street comply with applicable provisions of 

Code. 
 

In the event the Planning Commission, acting as the Town of Minturn Design Review Board, 
recommends approval of the Final Plans, staff respectfully suggests the following conditions of 
approval. 

 
1. The Applicant shall work with the Town to address comments, if any, that the 

Town Engineer provides.  
 

2. The Applicant shall revise the site and/or floor plans and elevation drawings to 
show all proposed exterior lighting fixture locations and provide final cut 
sheets/specifications for proposed exterior light fixtures prior to or concurrent 
with building permit applications to ensure compliance with the Town s lighting 
standards. 

50



      

Project Location
Street Address:

Zoning: Parcel Number(s):

Application Request:

Applicant:
Name:

Mailing Address:

Phone: Email:

Property Owner:
Name:

Mailing Address:

Phone: Email:

Required Information:
Lot Size: Type of Residence (Single 

Family, ADU, Duplex)
# of Bedrooms # On-site Parking Spaces

# of Stories: Snow storage sq ft: Building Footprint sq ft: Total sq ft Impervious Surface: 

Project Name:

Fee Paid:____________         Date Received:________________   Planner:______________________________

Signature:

DESIGN REVIEW APPLICATION

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT
P.O. Box 309 302 Pine Street Minturn, Colorado 81649-0309

Phone:  970-827-5645 Fax: 970-827-5545 Email: planner@minturn.org

51



Applicant Staff

DESIGN REVIEW APPLICATION 

SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST REQUIREMENTS 
(TO BE INCLUDED WITH APPLICATION) 

Application Fee (Non-Refundable application fee shall be collected) 

Design Review Board - $2 0.00

Letter of Intent
-- What is the purpose of the project including; 

Relevant Background

Current Status of the Site

All Proposed Uses and Structures

How the Proposal Differs from what already exists

Information regarding Easements or Dedicated Tracts, etc.

Vicinity Map
-- Directional Map indicating how to get to the Property involved in the request. 

Zoning of Property

Improvement Location Certificate of Survey (ILC or ILS)  

Site Plan showing Precise Nature of the Proposed Use  To Scale 

Scaled Drawings of Proposed Design of Structure
o Plan View and Sections

Building Heights  all 4 directions N/S/E/W

topography

Building Location

Setbacks

River or Creek Setbacks

Parking Plan

Traffic Circulation
o Location and Width of Existing and Proposed Access Points
o Location of Existing Driveways and Intersections

Landscaped Area  Plan

Approximate Location of Existing Wooded Areas and Rock Outcrops

Location and Type of Existing and Proposed Easements

Utility Easements

Drainage Features

Preliminary Building Plans and Elevations 
Indicates Dimensions

General Appearance

Scale

Interior Plan for the Buildings

52



Page 2 of  2- Design Review Checklist 

Elements needed on the Site Plan 
Scale 

 North Arrow 

 Date Prepared 

 Lot Dimensions, Area, Entire Site Acreage 

Architecture Details  Materials Board
Windows  Placement and Color 

 Doors  Placement and Color 

 Siding  Type and Color 

 Roof Material  Type and Color 

 Paint Color 

53



PLANNING COMMISSION 
DESIGN REVIEW PROCESS

Applicants requesting a Design Review Board, Planning and Zoning Commission, and/or Town Council Review must submit 
to a pre-submittal conference and complete a formal application.  The pre-submittal review process is completed within a 
period of 14 working days depending on the day of pre-submittal.  The pre-submittal review provides valuable information 
regarding Town requirements for the formal application. 

The Town Planner shall have the following powers and duties: 

Zoning Compliance  To review, consider, and approve, approve with conditions, or deny applications for 
building permits, limited use permits, conditional use permits, and temporary use permits based on compliance 
with this Section. 

Process Applications  To receive applications for development permits for processing pursuant to the terms of 
Section 16 of the Minturn Municipal Code. 

Planning Commission as Design Review Board 

Powers and Duties   
The Planning Commission is hereby established as the Town of Minturn Design Review Board.  The Design Review Board 
shall have the following powers and duties under the provisions of this Code. 

1. To prepare, or cause to be prepared or amended, the Design Review Standards and Guidelines or any element or 
portion thereof, for adoption by the Town Council. 

2. To hear, review, consider and approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove applications for Design Review 
Approval. 

3. To hear and decide upon appeals on design review decisions made by the Zoning Administrator. 

Board Procedure 
The Town staff will forward applications (other than minor design applications), and recommendations, to the DRB.    

The DRB shall review the application and supporting material submitted by the applicant, as well as the staff 
recommendation.  After review, the DRB, through a formal motion, seconded and passed by a majority of the members 
present, shall take one of the following courses of action: 

1. Table the application.  The application may be tabled for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days if the application is 
incomplete or if the DRB determines that changes are required to bring the application into compliance with design 
standards and guidelines or other regulations of the Town.  The Board may specify additional requirements for the 
applicant is to bring to the future meeting.  These requirements may include additional information necessary to 
determine whether the application complies with all zoning, building, design codes adopted by the Town, and may 
include plans, reports, surveys or other documents completed by registered architects, surveyors, engineers or other 
professionals in order to indicate conformance with such codes.  The DRB may also table the application if it determines 
that changes in the application are required which would bring the proposed project into compliance with zoning, 
building, design codes, and other regulations of the Town. 

2. Conceptual/Preliminary approval. The DRB may grant conceptual approval to applicants who in a general fashion 
appear to meet design and other regulations of the Town but submit applications inadequate to warrant final approval.  
Conceptual approvals are also appropriate where a complete application has not been submitted, or where an applicant 
wishes to obtain a preliminary review of a sketch plan.  A conceptual approval does not deem final approval of an 
application, nor does it deem that an application conforms to design or other regulations, nor shall it bind the DRB to 
grant final approval to a completed or final application. 

3. Disapproval of application. If an application is found to conflict with the purposes and/or any one (1) or more of the 
design guidelines, codes or any other regulations of the Town, the DRB shall disapprove the application.  Any 
disapproval shall be in writing and shall specifically describe the reasons upon which the disapproval is based.  

54



4. Approval of application. If the application is complete and is found to comply with the design standards and guidelines, 
codes and other regulations of the Town, the DRB shall approve the project.  The DRB shall keep a record of all such 
approvals, and the applicant should keep a copy of the approval.  The DRB may approve an application with conditions 
or modifications.  The DRB shall not approve an application that does not meet the requirements of the Town or any 
other provision required to ensure compliance with the design standards and guidelines, codes and other regulations of 
the Town. 

If a motion for approval, for conceptual approval, or to table an application results in a tie vote, the motion will fail. 

DESIGN REVIEW CRITERIA 

1. SITE DESIGN  

Site planning involves the design and location of buildings and other improvements on a property.  General principles include 
the maximization of site attributes such as views and solar orientation while minimizing adverse impacts to adjacent 
properties and natural features.  Design of the building(s) shall consider the following criteria: 

a. Natural Features 
(1) Topography 

A building site that is flat or gently sloping at less than 10% shall comply with applicable minimum standards for 
setbacks as defined in Chapter 16.   

the site to allow for traditional building layout.  The intent is to avoid large cuts and/or fills as well as retaining 
walls, and to avoid the need for additional erosion control measures.  

Setbacks may be increased for lots that slope greater than 30%. 

(2) Water Bodies 

Setbacks from water bodies shall include consideration of the Eagle River, tributary creeks, ponds, and 
wetlands.  In addition to the regulatory setbacks, the Town of Minturn encourages conformance with the Eagle 
River Watershed Plan and sensitive design to protect the riparian areas and to utilize the water bodies for 

greatest assets. 

Site grading and drainage plans shall be submitted with design review applications that are adjacent to or within 
fifty (50) feet of a water body.  

b. Orientation
The orientation of improvements shall consider adjacent properties as well as snow storage, snow shedding, and 
solar orientation.  Another important component of orientation is drainage impact to adjacent properties, water 
bodies and streets.   

Snow Storage, Snow Shedding and Solar Orientation 

The atmospheric and weather-related elements common of the Town of Minturn justify the added dimension of 
sitting improvements to minimize the impact of the environment. 

Adequate snow storage area(s) or provisions for removal shall be provided.  The total area may be broken up or 
provided as a whole. Location within the required setbacks shall be permitted provided it does not impede adequate 
and safe access to the structure(s).  Landscape areas may also be used for snow storage purposes.

Snow shedding shall be considered in the use of material and pitch of the roof, as well as the location of windows, 
door and walkways.  In no case shall snow shedding be permitted to occur onto an adjacent property. 

Solar orientation shall be considered in the siting of the structures as well as in the landscaping of the lot or parcel.  
Orientation of the structure, as well as placement of trees, can be utilized to block prevailing winds in the winter and 
to provide shade in the summer.  The structure should be placed on the lot in a manner that will not cast substantial 

55



shadows over adjacent properties.  Walkway and driveway location shall consider snowmelt in determining their 
location.  These considerations include locating driveways, walkways, and structures, so that they are sheltered from 
the wind, and oriented to the east or south, where possible, to aid quicker snow and ice melt. 

  The front of the structure and its primary entrance shall be oriented to the street. 

c. Massing and Scale  
A simple central form with additive features shall be designed.  This style creates visual interest and is appropriate 
for the community due to its compatibility with existing structures.    
Buildings and improvements should complement, rather than overpower, the adjacent natural and built environment.  
Homes are encouraged to be sheltering in nature, with consistent setbacks from the street with prominent porches or 
overhanging eaves.  

Building mass, form, length and height shall be designed to provide variety and visual interest while maintaining a 
scale that is similar or compatible to adjacent structures. 

2. ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS 

a. Roof Pitch and Form
Roofs are a very prominent visual element and can be used to provide strong unifying characteristics between 
buildings.  The use of consistent roof form, materials, slope and direction can create a cohesive appearance to a 
neighborhood even when the architectural styles vary.  Roof pitch and form are an important element of building 
design in the Town. 

The incorporation of dormers into the roof form can be utilized to provide individual identity and to create and 
delineate upper living areas or lofts.  Dormer roofs shall be similar in slope and material with the primary roof form.  
See Illustration. 

Roofs shall be designed with consideration to snow accumulation and shedding.  Entryways, garages and 
pedestrian areas shall be protected from potential snow shedding.  

Chimneys may also be utilized as a unifying element.  The size, location, and shape of chimney can be mimicked to 
provide a common feature in adjacent structures that have different architectural styles.  

b. Facade 
Vast expanses of a blank facade are not considered appropriate in Minturn due the mass and scale of the existing 
buildings in the Town.  Therefore, facades must be interrupted every 15' at minimum.   This interruption can occur 
through the use of projections and recessions for doors and windows, balconies or porches or any other element that 
creates visual interest.  The use of architectural elements such as horizontal and vertical architectural details and 

Windows and doors offer the opportunity to provide individual character and refinement of scale by introducing 
openings and patterns on otherwise blank walls.  Consideration should be given to locating doors and windows in 
order to establish symmetry on primary facades, while being responsive to interior functions and views.  The location 
of windows and doors can also be utilized as a unifying element with adjacent structures. 

In order to maintain a smaller scale and to avoid the use of vast expanses of large windows, window openings 
should be composed of multiple panes of glass that are consistent with the scale of the building.  Mirrored or 
reflective glass is prohibited. 

Shutters and window boxes are encouraged to create visual interest and to reinforce the Town ambiance. 

c. Building Details 
The requirement for a simple building form allows for the introduction of building details to create character and 
interest.  These details may include elements such as accents to doors and windows, porches, gates, dormers and 
chimneys. 

3. MATERIALS AND SCREENING 

a. Materials 
The use of building materials is essential to the design and appearance of a structure, therefore the use of materials 
is indicative of the adjacent community character.  Materials shall be consistent with adjacent properties and the 
natural environment.  The Town of Minturn does not seek to limit or prohibit the use of specific building materials, 

56



however the use of non-reflective materials are strongly encouraged.  Highly reflective roofing materials are not 
allowed. 

The historic character of Minturn is exhibited in the use of wood siding and native stone, therefore the use of these 
particular materials are encouraged.  Many modern equivalents can be found which mimic the natural materials, and 
the Design Review Board may approve such materials if their appearance is found to be compatible with adjacent 
material and consistent with the intent of these standards and guidelines. 

b. Streetscape and Landscape Design
Small towns evoke many images, but one that appears to be consistent with many residents is the neighborliness of 
the area.  Porches, plaza, parks and simply strolling down the street allow neighbors and visitors to meet and greet 
each other and to get to know one another.  The Town encourages the man-made elements that promote these 
activities, and in some instances the Design Review Board shall require the provision of streetscape improvements 
to encourage and reinforce the small town atmosphere.  

Porches and awnings are encouraged for all residential design as these elements create and encourage a human 
scale that is consistent with the small town image.  Commercial structures, particularly those that are located in 
renovated residential units, shall maintain these elements and incorporate the use of pedestrian walkways, street 
furniture such as benches and trashcans where possible.  Commercial developments that exceed 2500 square feet 
of gross leasable area shall be required to provide a plaza area that incorporates these elements.  

Landscape standards are defined in Section 16.17.14, 15 and 16 and shall be reviewed with all applications for 
design review.  Compliance with the minimum standards defined within those sections shall be required.  The 
Design Review Board shall review the list of plant material to be utilized, particularly for determination of irrigation 
requirements.  Exhibit B lists plant materials that are suitable for use in the Town, drought-resistant and therefore 
their use is encouraged.  Other plant materials listed that require substantial water and therefore the Design Review 
Board may require the provision of an irrigation system and the provision of collateral to assure its completion. 

c. Screening 
Both residential and commercial areas within the Town shall be required to screen certain visually obtrusive areas, 
including, but not limited to, refuse storage, general storage, loading areas, mechanical equipment and parking 
areas. 

The screening may occur with landscaping, compliant with Section 16.17.14. 15 and 16, or these uses may be 
screened with fencing or by containing the uses within a structure or parapet walls.  Fences shall not exceed 3-feet 
in height for opaque fences and 4 feet in height for fences with you can see through.  Higher fences may be used to 
screen the sides and rear of the lot but should not exceed 6 feet in height.  In no case shall a fence or screening 

Additional information regarding the Design Review processes and guidelines including the Character Areas can 
be found in Chapter 16, Appendix B of the Minturn Town Code.

57



LETTER mpp design shop 
  
 PO Box 288 
 Gypsum, CO 81637 
 (970) 390-4931 
 michael@mppdesignshop.com 
 
 

 

2203_Major_letter-of-intent_04-25-2022.docx  Page 1 of 2 

April 25, 2022 
 

Tel:  (970) 827-5645 
Fax:  (970) 827-5545 
e-mail: planner@minturn.org 
 
Regarding: Major Residence 
 
Location:  386 Taylor Street 
 Minturn, CO 81645 
 Parcel Number: 2103-262-22-002 
 DBC Subdivision, Lot 7A 
 
This application is for Design Review approval of a new single family residence, located at the above 
described address, with three levels consisting of a 2-car garage, 4 bedrooms, 3 1/2 baths, a great room 
with kitchen, living and dining, a small game room, a small office, and a second level covered deck on 
the west side of the building. There will be four parking spaces total with (2) covered in the garage and 
(2) uncovered on the driveway in front of the garage.  
 
The structure will have a poured-in-place concrete foundation, and wood framed floors, walls, and 
roofs. The exterior finishes of the building will consist of rusted corrugated metal siding at the wall base, 
vertical wood siding, asphalt shingle roofing, and black composite windows and exterior doors. There 
will be one bedroom suite below grade with an egress window in a window well, 2 bedrooms on the 
middle level, and the master bedroom suite on the upper level.  
 
The lot is an up-hill lot with an existing wood retaining wall approximately 6  tall and wood steps, both of 
which will be removed. Finished site grading will match grade at the adjacent north and south 
properties as closely as is possible. The lot slopes from Taylor Street on the west side to uphill on the east 
side towards Lion s Head Rock. The lower level has the garage at street level on the west side and is 
below grade on the east side. The middle level is at grade level on the east side. The upper level is one 
floor above grade.  
 
There is an existing sub-grade drainage pipe on the north side of the property with an inlet on the uphill 
side at the east side of the lot and daylights in the west face of the existing retaining wall. The drainage 
pipe will be replaced as necessary with the new site grading, and daylight near the street. Engineering 
for the drainage pipe and site grading will be provided by a licensed civil engineer at building permit 
submission.  
  

Town of Minturn 
Attention:  Planning Department 
302 Pine Street 
P.O. Box 309 
Minturn, CO 81645 

58



LETTER mpp design shop 
  
 PO Box 288 
 Gypsum, CO 81637 
 (970) 390-4931 
 michael@mppdesignshop.com 
 
 

 

2203_Major_letter-of-intent_04-25-2022.docx  Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 
 
Thank you for your consideration.  
 
SIGNED: Michael Pukas 
 

 
 

59



m
p

p
 d

e
si

g
n

 s
h

o
p

, i
n

c
. 

PO
 B

o
x 

28
8

G
yp

su
m

, C
O

 8
16

37
(9

70
) 

39
0-

49
31

m
ic

h
a

e
l@

m
p

p
d

e
sig

n
sh

o
p

.c
o

m

N
o

w
h

e
re

 R
e

si
d

e
n

c
e

Pa
rc

e
l N

u
m

b
e

r: 
21

03
-2

62
-2

2-
00

2
Lo

t 
7A

, D
BC

 S
ub

d
iv

isi
o

n
38

6 
Ta

yl
o

r S
tr

e
t

M
in

tu
rn

, C
O

 8
16

45

ABBREVIATIONS

& AND
@ AT
AB ANCHOR BOLT
AC AIR CONDITIONING
ACC ACCESSIBLE
ACOUST ACOUSTICAL
ACT ACOUSTIC CEILING TILE
AD AREA DRAIN
ADJ ADJACENT
AFF ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR
AFG ABOVE FINISHED GRADE
AGGR AGGREGATE
ALT ALTERNATE
ALUM ALUMINUM
ANOD ANODIZED
APC ACOUSTICAL PANEL CEILING
APPROX APPROXIMATE
ARCH ARCHITECTURAL
ASPH ASPHALT
ATTN ATTENTION
AUTO AUTOMATIC
AV AUDIOVISUAL

BD BOARD
BIT BITUMINOUS
BLDG BUILDING
BLK BLOCK
BLKG BLOCKING
BM BEAM
BO BOTTOM OF
BOT BOTTOM
BRG BEARING
BRK BRICK
BRKT BRACKET
BSMNT BASEMENT

C CHANNEL
CAB CABINET
CAT CATEGORY
CB CATCH BASIN
CB CEMENT BOARD
CBU CEMENTITIOUS BACKER UNIT
CC CENTER TO CENTER
CCTV CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION
CEM CEMENT
CER CERAMIC
CG CORNER GUARD
CH CHILLER
CI CAST IRON
CIP CAST-lN-PLACE
CJ CONTROL JOINT
CL CENTERLINE
CLG CEILING
CLR CLEAR
CNTR COUNTER
CO CLEANOUT
COL COLUMN
CONC CONCRETE
COND CONDITION
CONN CONNECTION
CONST CONSTRUCTION
CONT CONTINUOUS
CONTR CONTRACTOR
COORD COORDINATE
CORR CORRIDOR
CPT CARPET
CT CERAMIC TILE
CTR CENTER
CTSK COUNTERSUNK
CW COLD WATER

(D) DEMOLISH OR DEMOLITION
D DEEP, DEPTH
DBL DOUBLE
DEG DEGREE
DEMO DEMOLISH OR DEMOLITION
DEPT DEPARTMENT
DF DRINKING FOUNTAIN
DIA DIAMETER
DIFF DIFFUSER
DIM DIMENSION
DIMS DIMENSIONS
DISP DISPENSER
DIV DIVISION
DMPF DAMP PROOFING
DN DOWN
DO DOOR OPENING
DR DOOR
DRN DRAIN
DS DOWNSPOUT
DS DOWN SPOUT
DTL DETAIL
DW DISHWASHER
DWG DRAWING
DWR DRAWER

(E) EXISTING
CMU CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT
E EAST
EA EACH
EB EXPANSION BOLT
EJ EXPANSION JOINT
EL ELEVATION
ELEC ELECTRICAL
ELEV ELEVATOR
EMER EMERGENCY
ENCL ENCLOSURE
ENG ENGINEER
EP ELECTRICAL PANEL
EPDM ETHYLENE PROPYLENE

DIENE M-CLASS
EQ EQUAL
EQUIP EQUIPMENT
EXH EXHAUST
EXIST EXISTING
EXP EXPANSION
EXT EXTERIOR

FA FIRE ALARM
FB FACE BRICK
FD FLOOR DRAIN
FD FLOOR DRAIN OR FIRE

DEPARTMENT
FDC FIRE DEPARTMENT

CONNECTION
FE FIRE EXTINGUISHER
FEC FIRE EXTINGUISHER CABINET
FF&E FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND

EQUIPMENT
FFB FLUSH FLOOR BOX
FFEL FINISH FLOOR ELEVATION
FH FLAT HEAD
FHC FIRE HOSE CABINET
FIN FINISH
FIXT FIXTURE
FLASH FLASHING
FLR FLOOR

GENERAL NOTES
1 ALL WORK SHALL BE AS SPECIFIED AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL NATIONAL, STATE AND LOCAL

CODES, LAWS, PERMITS AND ORDINANCES, AND SHALL BE PERFORMED TO THE HIGHEST
STANDARDS OF CRAFTSMANSHIP BY JOURNEYMEN OF THE APPROPRIATE TRADES.

2 THESE DOCUMENTS ARE NOT INTENDED TO INCLUDE ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, AND
SERVICES REQUIRED TO COMPLETE ALL WORK DESCRIBED HEREIN. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR
(G.C.) SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND SITE CONDITIONS BEFORE STARTING WORK.

3 IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE G.C. TO BRING TO THE ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT ANY
CONDITIONS WHICH WILL NOT PERMIT CONSTRUCTION ACCORDING TO THE INTENTIONS OF THESE
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS (CD'S), AND TO NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT AT ONCE IF ANY DISCREPANCIES
APPEAR IN THE CD'S, OR BETWEEN THE CD'S AND EXISTING CONDITIONS.  IT IS THE
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE ARCHITECT TO PROVIDE DETAILS AND/OR DIRECTIONS REGARDING
DESIGN INTENT WHERE IT IS ALTERED BY EXISTING CONDITIONS OR WHERE NEGLECTED IN THE
DOCUMENTS.

4 SHOULD A CONFLICT OCCUR IN OR BETWEEN DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS,  THE
SPECIFICATIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE, UNLESS A WRITTEN DECISION FROM THE ARCHITECT
HAS BEEN OBTAINED WHICH DESCRIBES A CLARIFICATION OR ALTERNATE METHOD AND/OR
MATERIALS.

5 DIMENSIONS: A) ALL DIMENSIONS TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS.; B) ALL PLAN
DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF CONCRETE, FACE OF STUD, AND CENTER LINE OF COLUMN/BEAM,
U.O.N.; C) FLOOR TO FLOOR DIMENSIONS ARE FROM TOP OF PLYWOOD SUBSURFACE TO TOP OF
PLYWOOD SUBSURFACE, U.O.N.; D) VERIFY IN FIELD (V.I.F.) ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS DIMENSIONS,
LOCATIONS AND SITE CONDITIONS PRIOR TO NEW CONSTRUCTION.

6 THE G.C. SHALL SUBMIT SAMPLES OF ANY MATERIALS PROPOSED FOR SUBSTITUTION TO THE
ARCHITECT FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL BEFORE THE WORK IS TO BE PERFORMED. WORK
SHALL CONFORM TO THE APPROVED SAMPLES.

7 THE G.C. SHALL SUBMIT REQUIRED SHOP DRAWINGS TO THE ARCHITECT FOR REVIEW AND
APPROVAL BEFORE THE WORK IS TO BE PERFORMED. WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE
APPROVED SHOP DRAWINGS.

8 THE G.C. SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE SAFETY AND CARE OF ADJACENT PROPERTIES
DURING CONSTRUCTION, FOR COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE O.S.H.A. REGULATIONS, AND
FOR THE PROTECTION OF ALL WORK UNTIL IT IS DELIVERED COMPLETED TO THE OWNER.

9 THE G.C. SHALL VERIFY AND COORDINATE ALL OPENINGS THROUGH FLOORS, CEILINGS, AND
WALLS WITH ALL ARCHITECTURAL, STRUCTURAL, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, AND ELECTRICAL
DRAWINGS.

10 THE JOB SITE SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A CLEAN, ORDERLY CONDITION, FREE OF DEBRIS AND
LITTER, AND SHALL NOT BE UNREASONABLY ENCUMBERED.  EACH SUB-CONTRACTOR SHALL
REMOVE ALL TRASH AND DEBRIS AS OF RESULT OF HIS/HER OPERATION UPON COMPLETION OF
HIS/HER WORK.

11 THE G.C. SHALL PERFORM ALL PHASES OF CONSTRUCTION SUCH THAT ALL NEW CONSTRUCTION
FITS FLUSH AND SEAMLESSLY WITH ADJACENT EXISTING CONDITIONS, AND SHALL NOT ENDANGER
ANY EXISTING CONDITIONS OR OTHER WORK.

12 THE G.C. SHALL PROVIDE ALL NECESSARY BLOCKING, BACKING, AND FRAMING FOR LIGHT
FIXTURES, ELECTRICAL UNITS, A.C. EQUIPMENT, RECESSED ITEMS, AND ALL OTHER ITEMS AS
REQUIRED.

13 ALL CONSTRUCTION, STAGING, CONTRACTOR PARKING AND MATERIALS STORAGE SHALL BE
CONFINED TO THE LIMITS OF THE EXISTING DRIVEWAY AND THE IMMEDIATE PERIMETER OF THE
EXISTING BUILDING. ALL ACTIVITY PERFORMED AS PART OF THIS PROJECT SHALL BE CONTAINED
ON THE PROJECT PROPERTY.

14 CHANGES TO THESE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS SHALL BE NOTED IN THE FIELD AND MAINTAINED
ON-SITE FOR THE DURATION OF THE PROJECT FOR CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION.

15 AS-BUILT DRAWINGS WILL BE PROVIDED TO THE TOWN/COUNTY, IF REQUIRED.
16 UTILITY METER LOCATIONS TO BE APPROVED BY UTILITY COMPANIES.
17 ALL INTERIOR NON-BEARING WALLS TO BE 2x4, U.O.N.
18 ALL INTERIOR BEARING WALLS TO BE 2x6, U.O.N. SEE STRUCTURAL DWG'S FOR SPEC'S
19 ALL EXTERIOR WALLS TO BE 2x6, U.O.N. SEE STRUCTURAL DWG'S FOR SPEC'S
20 ALL HORIZONTAL FRAMING DIMENSIONS ARE TO THE FACE OF WOOD FRAMING, U.O.N.
21 ALL VERTICAL FRAMING DIMENSIONS ARE FROM THE T.O. PLYWOOD, U.O.N.
22 ALL HORIZONTAL DIMENSIONS FOR OPENINGS ARE TO THE CENTER LINE OF R.O.
23 ALL VERTICAL DIMENSIONS FOR OPENINGS ARE TO THE TOP OF R.O.

SITE NOTES
1 THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE EROSION CONTROL IN CONFORMANCE WITH

TOWN/COUNTY GUIDELINES.
2 THE CONSTRUCTION LIMIT LINE IS THE CONTRACT LINE. DO NOT DISTURB ANY EXISTING TREES OR

VEGETATION DESIGNATED TO REMAIN OR LOCATED OUTSIDE OF THE CONSTRUCTION LIMIT LINE
WITHOUT APPROVAL OF THE OWNER AND THE TOWN/COUNTY.

3 THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY EXISTING SITE INFORMATION, INCLUDING STRUCTURES,
UTILITIES, PROPERTY LINES, LIMITS OF ROADWAYS, AND CURBS AND GUTTERS THAT MAY AFFECT
THE SCOPE OF WORK PRIOR TO BEGINNING SITE CONSTRUCTION.

4 EXISTING UTILITIES ARE INDICATED FOR INFORMATION ONLY AND NOT INTENDED TO SHOW EXACT
LOCATION. THE ARCHITECT IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR THE LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES
OR STRUCTURES, OR ANYTHING NOT SHOWN OR DETAILED AND INSTALLED BY ANY OTHER
CONTRACT. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL LOCATE ALL UTILITIES AND MAINTAIN THE
LOCATION DURING ALL PHASES OF THE WORK. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGES TO UTILITIES OR STRUCTURES AND ANY INJURIES THEREFROM.
RESTORATION OF ANY UTILITIES DAMAGED BY THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE AT THE
GENERAL CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE OWNER.

5 CONFORM TO EAGLE RIVER WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT SPECIFICATIONS FOR SEWER
CONSTRUCTION. PROVIDE SEWER CLEANOUT WITH LOCATION TO BE REVIEWED BY TOWN
ENGINEER.

6 THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE DRAWINGS SHOWING PROPOSED UTILITY SERVICE
CONNECTIONS FOR THE ENGINEER'S REVIEW PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

7 ROAD CUTS AND ANY OTHER CONSTRUCTION IN ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL CONFORM TO TOWN
GUIDELINES.

8 ALL COMPACTION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SOILS REPORT PREPARED BY THE
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER.

9 PROVIDE WRITTEN NOTIFICATION OF ALL DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN EXISTING AND PROPOSED SITE
IMPROVEMENTS.

10 CONTRACTOR(S) SHALL TAKE ALL NECESSARY STEPS AS REQUIRED TO PROPERLY PROTECT
AND MAINTAIN HIS WORK FOR THE DURATION OF THIS CONTRACT.

11 THESE DRAWINGS DO NOT SPECIFY SAFETY MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, METHODS OR SEQUENCING,
TO PROTECT PERSONS AND PROPERTY. IT SHALL BE THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR'S
RESPONSIBILITY TO DIRECT AND IMPLEMENT SAFETY OPERATIONS AND PROCEDURES TO
PROTECT THE OWNER, OTHER CONTRACTORS, THE PUBLIC AND OTHERS.

12 ALL WORK SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE CODES AND ORDINANCES.
13 CONTRACTOR(S) SHALL EMPLOY A LICENSED SURVEYOR TO ESTABLISH ALL WORK LINES.
14 CONTRACTOR(S) SHALL STAKE OUT ALL AREAS, INCLUDING WALKS, PAVEMENTS, WALLS, POOLS

AND FENCES AND SHALL OBTAIN THE APPROVAL OF THE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO PROCEEDING
WITH THE WORK.

15 CONFLICTS OR DISCREPANCIES WITH GRADES SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE
ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY AND PRIOR TO PROCEEDING WITH WORK.

16 ALL FINISHED GRADES SHALL PROVIDE FOR NATURAL RUNOFF OF WATER WITHOUT LOW SPOTS
OR POCKETS. SET FLOW LINES ACCURATELY AND PROVIDE A MINIMUM 2.5% GRADIENT UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTES.

17 GRADUALLY ROUND OFF TOPS AND TOES OF ALL PLANTED SLOPES, UNLESS SHOWN OTHERWISE
IN GRADING DETAILS.

18 GRADE AWAY FROM ALL BUILDINGS AT A MINIMUM SLOPE OF 10% IN UNPAVED AREAS AND
MINIMUM SLOPE OF 2% IN PAVED AREAS.

19 CLEANOUTS SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR ALL CHANGES IN LINES AND/OR GRADE OR THE SANITARY
SEWER SERVICE.

20 CONFORM TO TOWN/COUNTY STANDARDS FOR WATER CONSTRUCTION. MAINTAIN 10 FEET
MINIMUM SEPARATION BETWEEN WATER AND SEWER UNDERGROUND SERVICE PIPES. MAINTAIN
SEVEN FEET MINIMUM COVER AT UNDERGROUND WATER SERVICE AND ASSOCIATED LINES. NEW
CURB STOPS AND SERVICE LINES SHALL BE INSTALLED FOR EACH UNIT. CURB STOPS SHALL
LOCATED ON THE PROPERTY LINE IN A SPOT APPROVED BY THE TOWN PUBLIC WORKS
DIRECTOR.

21 IF UTILITY CONNECTION POINTS ARE NOT KNOWN AT THE TIME OF BUILDING PERMIT SUBMISSION,
LOCATIONS TO BE COORDINATED AND APPROVED BY TOWN/COUNTY AND SERVICE PROVIDERS
IN ADVANCE.

SHEET INDEX

. COVER
01 AERIAL VIEWS
02 PERSPECTIVE VIEWS
ILC IMPROVEMENT LOCATION CERTIFICATE
AS101 SITE & LANDSCAPE PLANS
A001 LOT & BUILDING ANALYSIS, AREAS,

SCHEDULES
A002 WINDOW & DOOR SCHEDULES
A101 FOUNDATION PLAN
A102 LEVELS 1 & 2 FLOOR PLANS
A103 LEVEL 3 FLOOR & ROOF PLANS
A201 WEST & NORTH ELEVATIONS
A202 EAST & SOUTH ELEVATIONS
A301 BUILDING SECTIONS
A302 BUILDING SECTIONS
A303 BUILDING SECTIONS
A304 BUILDING SECTIONS

GC TO COMPLY WITH ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, THE 2018
INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE, AND THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL ENERGY CONSERVATION
CODE, AS WELL AS ANY AMENDMENTS ADOPTED BY THE TOWN'S AND/OR COUNTY'S MUNICIAPL
CODE REQUIREMENTS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO;

ENERGY CODE NOTES

CLIMATE ZONE 6B
FENESTRATION U-FACTOR 0.30
SKYLIGHT U-FACTOR 0.55
CEILING R-VALUE 49
WOOD FRAME WALL R-VALUE 20+5 OR 13+10 - CAVITY + CONTINUOUS EXTERIOR
MASS WALL R-VALUE 15/20
FLOOR R-VALUE 30
BASEMENT WALL R-VALUE 15/19 - CONTINUOUS + CAVITY
SLAB R-VALUE & DEPTH 10, 4'
CRAWL SPACE WALL R-VALUE 15/19 - CONTINUOUS + CAVITY
HEATED SLAB ON GRADE R-VALUE 5, 4'

ABBREVIATIONS

FLUOR FLUORESCENT
FND FOUNDATION
FO FACE OF
FP FIRE PROTECTION
FPG FIREPROOFING
FR FIRE RESISTANT
FRC FIBER REINFORCED

CONCRETE
FRT FIRE RETARDANT TREATED
FT FEET/FOOT
FTG FOOTING
FURN FURNITURE
FURR FURRING
FWC FABRIC WALL COVERING
FWP FABRIC WRAPPED PANEL

GA GAUGE
GALV GALVANIZED
GB GRAB BAR
GC GENERAL CONTRACT(OR)
GEN GENERAL
GFRC GLASS FIBER REINFORCED

CONCRETE
GL GLASS
GLAZ GLAZING
GRAN GRANULAR
GRD GROUND
GRFG GLASS FIBER REINFORCED

GYPSUM
GSM GALVANIZED SHEET METAL
GV GAS VALVE
GWB GYPSUM WALL BOARD
GYP GYPSUM

H HIGH/HEIGHT
HB HOSE BIBB
HC HANDICAPPED
HDWD HARDWOOD
HDWR HARDWARE
HGT HEIGHT
HM HOLLOW METAL
HNDRL HANDRAIL
HO HOLD OPEN
HORIZ HORIZONTAL
HR HOUR
HRC HOSE REEL CABINET
HTG HEATING
HVAC HEATING VENTILATION AND

AIR CONDITIONING
HW HOT WATER

ID INSIDE DIAMETER
IN INCH/INCHES
INCAND INCANDESCENT
INCL INCLUDED/INCLUDING
INFO INFORMATION
INSUL INSULATION
INSUL INSULATED OR INSULATION
INT INTERIOR
INTERM INTERMEDIATE
INV INVERT

JAN JANITOR
JC JANITOR'S CLOSET
JST JOIST
JT JOINT

KIT KITCHEN
KO KNOCK OUT

LAM LAMINATE
LAV LAVATORY
LB POUNDS
LLH LONG LEG HORIZONTAL
LLV LONG LEG VERTICAL
LT LIGHT

MAS MASONRY
MAX MAXIMUM
MECH MECHANICAL
MED MEDIUM
MEMBR MEMBRANE
MFR MANUFACTURER
MH MAN HOLE
MIN MINIMUM
MISC MISCELLANEOUS
MO MASONRY OPENING
MR MOISTURE RESISTANT
MTD MOUNTED
MTG MOUNTING
MTL METAL
MULL MULLION

(N) NEW
N NORTH
NA NOT APPLICABLE
NC NOISE CRITERIA
NIC NOT IN CONTRACT
NO NUMBER
NOM NOMINAL
NON
COMB

NON COMBUSTIBLE

NTS NOT TO SCALE

OA OUTSIDE AIR
OC ON CENTER
OD OUTSIDE DIAMETER
OD OVERFLOW DRAIN
OFCI OWNER FURNISHED,

CONTRACTOR INSTALLED
OFF OFFICE
OFOI OWNER FURNISHED, OWNER

INSTALLED
OH OVERHEAD
OPNG OPENING
OPP OPPOSITE
ORD OVERFLOW ROOF DRAIN

P PAINT
PAV PAVING
PBD PARTICLE BOARD
PC PRECAST
PDF POWER DRIVEN FASTENER
PERF PERFORATED
PERIM PERIMETER
PERP PERPENDICULAR
PI. PLATE
PLAM PLASTIC LAMINATE
PLAS PLASTER
PLBG PLUMBING
PLF POUNDS PER LINEAR FOOT
PLYWD PLYWOOD

ABBREVIATIONS

PNL PANEL
PNT PAINT OR PAINTED
POL POLISHED
PR PAIR
PREFAB PREFABRICATED
PROJ PROJECT
PSF POUNDS PER SQUARE FOOT
PT POINT
PT PRESSURE TREATED
PTD PAINTED
PTN PARTITION
PVC POLYVINYL CHLORIDE

QT QUARRY TILE
QTY QUANTITY

R RADIUS/RISER
RA RETURN AIR
RAD RADIUS
RB RESILIENT BASE
RBR RUBBER
RCP REFLECTED CEILING PLAN
RD ROOF DRAIN
REC RECESSED
RECPT RECEPTACLE
REF REFERENCE
REFR REFRIGERATOR
REG REGISTER
REINF REINFORCED REINFORCING
REL RELOCATE
REM REMOVABLE
REOOM RECOMMENDED
REQ REQUIRE/REQUIRED
REQD REQUIRED
RESIL RESILIENT
REV REVISION/REVISED
RM ROOM
RO ROUGH OPENING
RTD RATED
RTG RATING
RWL RAIN WATER LEADER

S SOUTH
SA SUPPLY AIR
SAF SELF ADHERED FLASHING
SC SOLID CORE
SCHED SCHEDULE
SD STORM DRAIN
SECT SECTION
SF SQUARE FEET/FOOT
SH SPRINKLER HEAD
SHR SHOWER
SHT SHEET
SIM SIMILAR
SM SHEET METAL
SM SURFACE MOUNTED
SP STANDPIPE
SPEC SPECIFIED OR

SPECIFICATION
SPK SPRINKLER OR SPEAKER
SPKR SPEAKER
SQ SQUARE
SS STAINLESS STEEL
SSK SERVICE SINK
STA STATION
STC SOUND TRANSMISSION

COEFFICIENT
STL STEEL
STOR STORAGE
STRG STRINGER
STRUCT STRUCTURE OR STRUCTURAL
SUBCAT SUBCATEGORY
SUSP SUSPENDED
SYM SYMMETRICAL
SYS SYSTEM

T TREAD
T&B TOP AND BOTTOM
T&G TONGUE AND GROOVE
TB TOWEL BAR
TEL TELEPHONE/TELECOM
TELE TELEPHONE
TEMP TEMPERATURE
TEMP TEMPORARY
THK THICKNESS
THRU THROUGH
TKBD TACK BOARD
TLT TOILET
TMPD TEMPERED
TO TOP OF
TOB TOP OF BEAM
TOC TOP OF CONCRETE
TOS TOP OF STEEL
TS TUBE STEEL
TV TELEVISION
TYP TYPICAL

UNFIN UNFINISHED
UNO UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE
UON UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED
URNL URINAL

VAC VENTILATION AND AIR
CONDITIONING

VAR VARIES
VCT VINYL COMPOSITION TILE
VERT VERTICAL
VEST VESTIBULE
VIF VERIFY IN FIELD
VP VISION PANEL
VR VAPOR RETARDER
VT VINYL TILE
VWC VINYL WALL COVERING

W WIDE/WEST
W/ WITH
W/O WITHOUT
WC WATER CLOSET
WD WOOD
WIN WINDOW
WM WIRE MESH
WP WATERPROOF/WATERPROO

FING
WPM WATERPROOF MEMBRANE
WS WEATHER-STRIPPING
WSCT WAINSCOT
WT WEIGHT
WV WATER VALVE
WWF WELDED WIRE FABRIC
WWM WELDED WIRE MESH

# Description Date
1 DRB Submission 04/19/22

60



m
p

p
 d

e
si

g
n

 s
h

o
p

, i
n

c
. 

PO
 B

o
x 

28
8

G
yp

su
m

, C
O

 8
16

37
(9

70
) 

39
0-

49
31

m
ic

h
a

e
l@

m
p

p
d

e
sig

n
sh

o
p

.c
o

m

N
o

w
h

e
re

 R
e

si
d

e
n

c
e

Pa
rc

e
l N

u
m

b
e

r: 
21

03
-2

62
-2

2-
00

2
Lo

t 
7A

, D
BC

 S
ub

d
iv

isi
o

n
38

6 
Ta

yl
o

r S
tr

e
t

M
in

tu
rn

, C
O

 8
16

45

# Description Date
1 DRB Submission 04/19/22

61



m
p

p
 d

e
si

g
n

 s
h

o
p

, i
n

c
. 

PO
 B

o
x 

28
8

G
yp

su
m

, C
O

 8
16

37
(9

70
) 

39
0-

49
31

m
ic

h
a

e
l@

m
p

p
d

e
sig

n
sh

o
p

.c
o

m

N
o

w
h

e
re

 R
e

si
d

e
n

c
e

Pa
rc

e
l N

u
m

b
e

r: 
21

03
-2

62
-2

2-
00

2
Lo

t 
7A

, D
BC

 S
ub

d
iv

isi
o

n
38

6 
Ta

yl
o

r S
tr

e
t

M
in

tu
rn

, C
O

 8
16

45

# Description Date
1 DRB Submission 04/19/22

62



63



TA
Y L
O
R
 S
TR
EE
T 
(4
0 '
 R

. O
. W
. )

LOT 10A

10.00'

5.00'

WOOD PRIVACY
FENCE (TYP)

RETAINING WALL

PROPANE TANK

GREEN VAULT

POWER POLE
WITH METER
DISCONNECT

OVERHEAD
ELECTRIC

OVERHEAD
TELEPHONE

LOT 7A
0386
0.175 ACRES (PLATTED)

FOUND 1.5" ALUMINUM
CAP LS 20695

FOUND 1.5" RED PLASTIC
CAP LS 26626

B
A
S
IS
 O

F  
B
EA

R
IN
G
S

5' SIDE BUILDING SETBACK

5' SIDE BUILDING SETBACK

5' UTILITY AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

5' UTILITY AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

10
' 
R
EA

R 
B
U
IL
D
IN
G
 S

ET
B
A
C
K

10
' 
D
R
A
IN
A
G
E 

A
N
D
 U

TI
LI
TY

 E
A
SE

M
E
N
T

18" HDPE PIPE
INV.OUT(W):7,847.81
SEE NOTE 7

CORRUGATED METAL PIPE
SIZE UNKNOWN

TOP OF PIPE:7,855.69'
SEE NOTE 7

R
=
5
7
3.
3
2 '

5.00'

G

0 5 7.5 10 15 25

 7 8
34 

 78
3 6 

 78 3
8  

 78
40

 

 7842 

 7844
 

 78
46 

 78
48

 

 785
0
 

 7852 

 7854
 

 785
6 

 7 8 5
8  

 78
6
0
 

 78
62 

 78
34 

 7 8 3
6  

 783
8 

 78
4 0

 

 7842 

 784
4 

 784
6 

 7848
 

 78
50

 

 7852 

 78
54  

 78
56

 

 7 8
58

 

 7860 

 786
2 

TA
Y L
O
R
 S

TR
EE
T 
(4
0 '
 R

. O
. W
. )

LOT 10A

S89°05'00"W  139.89'

N
05

°
39

' 1
5
" E
  

8
. 9
5
'

N51°50'19"W  11.90' N89°05'00"E  126.38'

S
0 0

°
55

'00
"E  4

2
.5 0

'
7.50

'

(N85°03'00"E
  12.22' TIE)

(N89°05'00"E  2.16' TIE)

N
10
°
14
'2
1"
E
  
5
1.
82

'

10.00'

5.00'

WOOD PRIVACY
FENCE (TYP)

RETAINING WALL

PROPANE TANK

GREEN VAULT

POWER POLE
WITH METER
DISCONNECT

OVERHEAD
ELECTRIC

OVERHEAD
TELEPHONE

LOT 7A
0386
0.175 ACRES (PLATTED)

FOUND 1.5" ALUMINUM
CAP LS 20695

FOUND 1.5" RED PLASTIC
CAP LS 26626

B
A
S I
S
 O

F  
B
EA

R
IN
G
S

5' SIDE BUILDING SETBACK

5' SIDE BUILDING SETBACK

5' UTILITY AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

5' UTILITY AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

10
' 
R
EA

R
 B

U
IL
D
IN
G
 S

ET
B
A
C
K

10
' 
D
R
A
IN
A
GE

 A
N
D 

U
TI
LI
TY

 E
A
SE

M
EN

T

18" HDPE PIPE
INV.OUT(W):7,847.81
SEE NOTE 7

CORRUGATED METAL PIPE
SIZE UNKNOWN

TOP OF PIPE:7,855.69'
SEE NOTE 7

R
=
57

3.
3
2 '

5.00'

0 5 7.5 10 15 25

FG: 7847.8'

FG: 7849.1'

FG: 7852.7'

FG: 7852.4'

2%

EG: 7840.8'

EG: 7853.8'

EG: 7844.2'

EG: 7844.1' EG: 7853.9'

FG: 7852.3'

FG: 7849.7'FG: 7840.7'

8%

21 ' - 1"

7841.0'

7841.0'

ROOF: 7875.6'

ROOF: 7875.6'

ROOF: 7875.6'

ROOF: 7875.6'

ROOF: 7868.7'

ROOF: 7868.7'

m
p

p
 d

e
si

g
n

 s
h

o
p

, i
n

c
. 

PO
 B

o
x 

28
8

G
yp

su
m

, C
O

 8
16

37
(9

70
) 

39
0-

49
31

m
ic

h
a

e
l@

m
p

p
d

e
sig

n
sh

o
p

.c
o

m

N
o

w
h

e
re

 R
e

si
d

e
n

c
e

Pa
rc

e
l N

u
m

b
e

r: 
21

03
-2

62
-2

2-
00

2
Lo

t 
7A

, D
BC

 S
ub

d
iv

isi
o

n
38

6 
Ta

yl
o

r S
tr

e
t

M
in

tu
rn

, C
O

 8
16

45

Planting Schedule

Type
Mark Count Type

A 1 Colorado blue spruce/Picea pungens
'Glauca'

B 5 Quaking aspen/Populus tremuloides

# Description Date
1 DRB Submission 04/19/22

64



m
p

p
 d

e
si

g
n

 s
h

o
p

, i
n

c
. 

PO
 B

o
x 

28
8

G
yp

su
m

, C
O

 8
16

37
(9

70
) 

39
0-

49
31

m
ic

h
a

e
l@

m
p

p
d

e
sig

n
sh

o
p

.c
o

m

N
o

w
h

e
re

 R
e

si
d

e
n

c
e

Pa
rc

e
l N

u
m

b
e

r: 
21

03
-2

62
-2

2-
00

2
Lo

t 
7A

, D
BC

 S
ub

d
iv

isi
o

n
38

6 
Ta

yl
o

r S
tr

e
t

M
in

tu
rn

, C
O

 8
16

45

LIVEABLE FLOOR AREA

LEVEL 1 AREA 748 SF
LEVEL 2 AREA 1,362 SF
LEVEL 3 AREA 480 SF

2,590 SF

GARAGE AREA

GARAGE AREA 615 SF
615 SF

TOTAL BUILDING AREA

GARAGE AREA 615 SF
LEVEL 1 AREA 748 SF
LEVEL 2 AREA 1,362 SF
LEVEL 3 AREA 480 SF
TOTAL BUILDING AREA 3,205 SF

DECK AREA

DECK 217 SF
217 SF

SNOW STORAGE AREA

SNOW STORAGE 75 SF
SNOW STORAGE 148 SF

223 SF

# Description Date
1 DRB Submission 04/19/22

DRIVEWAY AREA

DRIVEWAY AREA 674 SF
674 SF

LOT AREA & ALLOWABLE COVERAGE

LOT AREA
BUILDING LOT COVERAGE
@ 40%

IMPERVIOUS SURFACE
COVERAGE @ 50%

5,922 SF 2,369 SF 2,961 SF

BUILDING LOT COVERAGE

BUILDING LOT COVERAGE 1,362 SF
50% 2ND LEVEL DECK COVERAGE 108 SF
FRONT PORCH COVERAGE 37 SF

1,507 SF

IMPERVIOUS SURFACE
COVERAGE

BUILDING LOT COVERAGE 1,362 SF
50% 2ND LEVEL DECK COVERAGE 108 SF
FRONT PORCH COVERAGE 37 SF
WALKWAY COVERAGE 72 SF
DRIVEWAY COVERAGE 569 SF

2,148 SF

65



m
p

p
 d

e
si

g
n

 s
h

o
p

, i
n

c
. 

PO
 B

o
x 

28
8

G
yp

su
m

, C
O

 8
16

37
(9

70
) 

39
0-

49
31

m
ic

h
a

e
l@

m
p

p
d

e
sig

n
sh

o
p

.c
o

m

N
o

w
h

e
re

 R
e

si
d

e
n

c
e

Pa
rc

e
l N

u
m

b
e

r: 
21

03
-2

62
-2

2-
00

2
Lo

t 
7A

, D
BC

 S
ub

d
iv

isi
o

n
38

6 
Ta

yl
o

r S
tr

e
t

M
in

tu
rn

, C
O

 8
16

45

WINDOW SCHEDULE

Mark Type Description Width Height Head Height
U-FACTO

R Comments

102 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11
1/2"

5' - 11 1/2" 8' - 1 1/2" <=0.3 EGRESS

203 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11
1/2"

5' - 11 1/2" 10' - 1 1/2" <=0.3

208 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11
1/2"

5' - 11 1/2" 10' - 1 1/2" <=0.3

209 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11
1/2"

5' - 11 1/2" 9' - 1 1/2" <=0.3

211 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11
1/2"

5' - 11 1/2" 9' - 1 1/2" <=0.3

215 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11
1/2"

5' - 11 1/2" 7' - 8" <=0.3 EGRESS

216 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11
1/2"

5' - 11 1/2" 7' - 8" <=0.3 EGRESS

218 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11
1/2"

5' - 11 1/2" 7' - 8" <=0.3 EGRESS

219 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11
1/2"

5' - 11 1/2" 7' - 8" <=0.3 EGRESS

303 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11
1/2"

5' - 11 1/2" 8' - 1 1/2" <=0.3

304 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11
1/2"

5' - 11 1/2" 8' - 1 1/2" <=0.3 EGRESS

305 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11
1/2"

5' - 11 1/2" 8' - 1 1/2" <=0.3 EGRESS

306 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11
1/2"

5' - 11 1/2" 8' - 1 1/2" <=0.3 EGRESS

312 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11
1/2"

5' - 11 1/2" 8' - 1 1/2" <=0.3 EGRESS

14
201 2 CASEMENT 2' - 5

1/2"
4' - 5 1/2" 7' - 7 1/2" <=0.3

212 2 CASEMENT 2' - 5
1/2"

4' - 5 1/2" 8' - 1 1/2" <=0.3

217 2 CASEMENT 2' - 5
1/2"

4' - 5 1/2" 7' - 8" <=0.3

226 2 CASEMENT 2' - 5
1/2"

4' - 5 1/2" 8' - 1 1/2" <=0.3

4
213 3 AWNING 2' - 11

1/2"
2' - 11 1/2" 7' - 8" <=0.3

214 3 AWNING 2' - 11
1/2"

2' - 11 1/2" 7' - 8" <=0.3

221 3 AWNING 2' - 11
1/2"

2' - 11 1/2" 7' - 8" <=0.3

222 3 AWNING 2' - 11
1/2"

2' - 11 1/2" 7' - 8" <=0.3

223 3 AWNING 2' - 11
1/2"

2' - 11 1/2" 15' - 7 1/2" <=0.3

224 3 AWNING 2' - 11
1/2"

2' - 11 1/2" 11' - 10 1/2" <=0.3

225 3 AWNING 2' - 11
1/2"

2' - 11 1/2" 8' - 1 1/2" <=0.3

301 3 AWNING 2' - 11
1/2"

2' - 11 1/2" 8' - 1 1/2" <=0.3

302 3 AWNING 2' - 11
1/2"

2' - 11 1/2" 8' - 1 1/2" <=0.3

311 3 AWNING 2' - 11
1/2"

2' - 11 1/2" 8' - 1 1/2" <=0.3

10
202 4 AWNING 2' - 11

1/2"
2' - 5 1/2" 4' - 2" <=0.3

207 4 AWNING 2' - 11
1/2"

2' - 5 1/2" 4' - 2" <=0.3

2
307 5 DIRECT GLAZE 2' - 11

1/2"
3' - 5 1/2" 11' - 7" <=0.3

308 5 DIRECT GLAZE 2' - 11
1/2"

3' - 5 1/2" 11' - 7" <=0.3

309 5 DIRECT GLAZE 2' - 11
1/2"

3' - 5 1/2" 11' - 7" <=0.3

3
101 6 DIRECT GLAZE 5' - 11

1/2"
2' - 11 1/2" 9' - 7 1/2" <=0.3

103 6 DIRECT GLAZE 5' - 11
1/2"

2' - 11 1/2" 9' - 1 1/2" <=0.3

2
205 7 DIRECT GLAZE 3' - 5

1/2"
4' - 5 1/2" 15' - 3" <=0.3

1
204 8 DIRECT GLAZE 3' - 8" 4' - 5 1/2" 5' - 1 65/128" <=0.3
206 8 DIRECT GLAZE 3' - 8" 4' - 5 1/2" 15' - 1 65/128" <=0.3
2
TOTAL WINDOW COUNT: 38

EXTERIOR DOOR SCHEDULE
Mark Type Description Width Height U-FACTOR Comments

1A A ENTRY 3' - 0" 7' - 0"
1A: 1
1B B ENTRY SIDE-LITE 2' - 0" 7' - 0"
1B: 1
1C E OVERHEAD

GARAGE
18' - 0" 8' - 0"

1C: 1
2A C SLIDING PATIO

DOOR
12' - 0" 10' - 0"

2A: 1
2B D SWING PATIO

DOOR
3' - 1 7/16" 7' - 2"

2B: 1
TOTAL EXTERIOR DOOR COUNT: 5

# Description Date

INTERIOR DOOR SCHEDULE
Mark Type Width Height Operation Description Comments

101 1 3' - 0" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
102 1 3' - 0" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
103 1 3' - 0" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
104 2 2' - 8" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
105 2 2' - 8" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
106 7 4' - 11" 7' - 0" BY-PASS DOUBLE SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
107 4 2' - 4" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
201 2 2' - 8" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
202 2 2' - 8" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
203 3 2' - 6" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
204 2 2' - 8" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
205 6 5' - 11" 7' - 0" BY-PASS DOUBLE SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
206 4 2' - 4" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
207 2 2' - 8" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
208 6 5' - 11" 7' - 0" BY-PASS DOUBLE SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
209 4 2' - 4" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
210 4 2' - 4" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
301 2 2' - 8" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
302 4 2' - 4" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
303 4 2' - 4" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
304 5 2' - 2" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
305 5 2' - 2" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
Grand total: 22

INTERIOR DOOR SCHEDULE TOTALS
Mark Type Width Height Operation Description Comments

101 1 3' - 0" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
102 1 3' - 0" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
103 1 3' - 0" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
3
207 2 2' - 8" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
201 2 2' - 8" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
204 2 2' - 8" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
202 2 2' - 8" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
105 2 2' - 8" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
104 2 2' - 8" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
301 2 2' - 8" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
7
203 3 2' - 6" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
1
209 4 2' - 4" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
206 4 2' - 4" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
107 4 2' - 4" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
210 4 2' - 4" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
302 4 2' - 4" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
303 4 2' - 4" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
6
304 5 2' - 2" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
305 5 2' - 2" 7' - 0" SWING SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
2
208 6 5' - 11" 7' - 0" BY-PASS DOUBLE SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
205 6 5' - 11" 7' - 0" BY-PASS DOUBLE SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
2
106 7 4' - 11" 7' - 0" BY-PASS DOUBLE SOLID CORE, 2-PANEL
1
Grand total: 22

66



54
'-0

"

10
'-0

"
28

'-0
"

16
'-0

"

14
'-0

"
14

'-0
"

3'
-0

"
4'

-0
"

9'
-0

"

30'-0"

54
'-0

"

5'
-0

"
5'

-0
"

44
'-0

"

30'-0"

22'-0"8'-0"

5 1/2"

m
p

p
 d

e
si

g
n

 s
h

o
p

, i
n

c
. 

PO
 B

o
x 

28
8

G
yp

su
m

, C
O

 8
16

37
(9

70
) 

39
0-

49
31

m
ic

h
a

e
l@

m
p

p
d

e
sig

n
sh

o
p

.c
o

m

N
o

w
h

e
re

 R
e

si
d

e
n

c
e

Pa
rc

e
l N

u
m

b
e

r: 
21

03
-2

62
-2

2-
00

2
Lo

t 
7A

, D
BC

 S
ub

d
iv

isi
o

n
38

6 
Ta

yl
o

r S
tr

e
t

M
in

tu
rn

, C
O

 8
16

45

# Description Date
1 DRB Submission 04/19/22

67



UP

DN

5'
-0

"
49

'-0
"

54
'-0

"

5'
-0

"
5'

-0
"

44
'-0

"

8
'-0

"

30'-0"

22'-0"8'-0"

30'-0"

28
'-0

"

5 
1/

2"

3'
-7

"

3 
1/

2"

2'
-2

" 3 
1/

2"

8
'-2

"

8"

4 1/2"

11'-1"

3 1/2"

5'-7"3 1/2"10'-8"

4 1/2"

8"

28
'-0

"
0
"

5 
1/

2"
14

'-6
"

4 
1/

2"
8
"

3 1/2" 8'-1"

3 
1/

2"
6'

-1
"

3'
-0

"
4'

-0
"

4'
-0

"

5'
-0

"

3'-2 1/2"

3 1/2"

3'-5 1/2"

EQEQ 5 1/2"

7'
-0

"

10
'-0

"
28

'-0
"

16
'-0

"

54
'-0

"

10
'-0

"
44

'-0
"

15
'-6

 1
/2

"

5 
1/

2"

3'
-7

"
3 

1/
2"

5'
-9

 1
/2

"
3 

1/
2"

5'
-1

 1
/2

"
5 1/2"

7'-1"
3 1/2"

3'-2 1/2"
3 1/2"

3'-7 1/2"
3 1/2"

3'-5"
3 1/2"

3'-2 1/2"
3 1/2"

7'-1"
5 1/2"

5 1/2"10'-7"3 1/2"7'-4"3 1/2"10'-7"5 1/2"

4'
-0

"

5 
1/

2"
5'

-8
"

3 
1/

2"
5'

-4
 3

/4
"

3 
1/

2"
3'

-1
"

4'-0" 4'-0"EQ EQ

2'
-6

"
9'
-0

"
10

'-9
"

5'
-9

"

2'-8 3/4" 2'-8 3/4"

8
'-9

"
2'

-6
"

8
'-9

"
2'

-6
"

22'-0"8'-0"

30'-0"

54
'-0

"

2'
-2

"3
 1

/2
"

12
'-7

 1
/2

"

3 
1/

2"

3'
-4

"

3 
1/

2"

10
'-3

"
4'

-6
"

4'-1"

2'-6"5'-11 1/2"

9 1/2" 9 1/2"

4'-6"13'-0"4'-6"

T.O. PLYWD 7853' - 0"

5'
-6

"
5'

-6
"

5'
-3

"

2'
-0

"

m
p

p
 d

e
si

g
n

 s
h

o
p

, i
n

c
. 

PO
 B

o
x 

28
8

G
yp

su
m

, C
O

 8
16

37
(9

70
) 

39
0-

49
31

m
ic

h
a

e
l@

m
p

p
d

e
sig

n
sh

o
p

.c
o

m

N
o

w
h

e
re

 R
e

si
d

e
n

c
e

Pa
rc

e
l N

u
m

b
e

r: 
21

03
-2

62
-2

2-
00

2
Lo

t 
7A

, D
BC

 S
ub

d
iv

isi
o

n
38

6 
Ta

yl
o

r S
tr

e
t

M
in

tu
rn

, C
O

 8
16

45

# Description Date
1 DRB Submission 04/19/22

68



DN

5 1/2"8'-10 1/2"3 1/2"12'-1"3 1/2"7'-6 1/2"5 1/2"

5'
-7

"
3 

1/
2"

9'
-2

 1
/2

"
5 

1/
2"

EQ
EQ

30'-0"

5 
1/

2"
7'
-8

 1
/2

"
3 

1/
2"

7'
-1

"
5 

1/
2"

4'
-9

"
7'
-3

"
4'

-0
"

5'-5 3/4"

4'
-0

"

54
'-0

"

38
'-0

"
16

'-0
"

3 1/2"

2'-2"

3 1/2"

2'-10 1/2"

3 1/2"

3'-3"

5 1/2"

4'
-3

"

EQ
EQ

3'
-3

"
3 

1/
2"

3'
-0

"

EQ
EQ

OVERHANG
2'-0"

OVERHANG
2'-0"

O
V
ER

H
A
NG

2'
-0

"

O
V
ER

H
A
NG

2'
-0

"

O
V
ER

H
A
NG

2'
-0

"

O
V
ER

H
A
NG

2'
-0

"

OVERHANG
2'-0"

OVERHANG
2'-0"

OVERHANG
2'-0"

O
V
ER

H
A
NG

2'
-0

"

OVERHANG
6"

4
" 
/ 

12
"

10
" 
/ 

12
"

10
" 

/ 
12

"

10
" 

/ 
12

"

10" / 12"10" / 12"

4
" 
/ 

12
"

2" / 12"

9'-2"
DORMER WIDTH

13'-0"7'-10"

7868.7'
7874.2' 7868.7'

m
p

p
 d

e
si

g
n

 s
h

o
p

, i
n

c
. 

PO
 B

o
x 

28
8

G
yp

su
m

, C
O

 8
16

37
(9

70
) 

39
0-

49
31

m
ic

h
a

e
l@

m
p

p
d

e
sig

n
sh

o
p

.c
o

m

N
o

w
h

e
re

 R
e

si
d

e
n

c
e

Pa
rc

e
l N

u
m

b
e

r: 
21

03
-2

62
-2

2-
00

2
Lo

t 
7A

, D
BC

 S
ub

d
iv

isi
o

n
38

6 
Ta

yl
o

r S
tr

e
t

M
in

tu
rn

, C
O

 8
16

45

# Description Date
1 DRB Submission 04/19/22

69



LEVEL 1

PLATE 2

4'
-0

"
9'
-0

"
10

'-0
"

11
'-6

"
6"

EQ
EQ

HE
IG

H
T 

@
 M

ID
-P

O
IN

T 
O

F 
R
O

O
F

27
'-8

"

7868.7' MID-POINT OF ROOF

10
'-9

"

LEVEL 1

PLATE 2

6"
11

'-6
"

10
'-0

"
9'
-0

"
4'

-0
"

10
'-9

"

m
p

p
 d

e
si

g
n

 s
h

o
p

, i
n

c
. 

PO
 B

o
x 

28
8

G
yp

su
m

, C
O

 8
16

37
(9

70
) 

39
0-

49
31

m
ic

h
a

e
l@

m
p

p
d

e
sig

n
sh

o
p

.c
o

m

N
o

w
h

e
re

 R
e

si
d

e
n

c
e

Pa
rc

e
l N

u
m

b
e

r: 
21

03
-2

62
-2

2-
00

2
Lo

t 
7A

, D
BC

 S
ub

d
iv

isi
o

n
38

6 
Ta

yl
o

r S
tr

e
t

M
in

tu
rn

, C
O

 8
16

45

EXTERIOR METERIAL LEGEND

Key Material Manufacturer Model Color Finish Notes
1 ASPHALT SHINGLES WEATHERED WOOD LIFE TIME WARARNTY
2 2x WOOD FASCIA BLACK SEMI-TRANSPAREN

T STAIN
3 VERTICAL WOOD SIDING DARK GREY SEMI-TRANSPAREN

T STAIN
4 Soffit NATURAL

CEDAR-TONE
SEMI-TRANSPAREN
T STAIN

5 CORRUGATED COR-TEN SIDING NATURAL RUST
6 2x RS FASCIA BLACK SEMI-TRANSPAREN

T STAIN
7 METAL RAILING W/ WOOD TOP RAIL BLACK POWDER COAT
8 6X6 D.F. WOOD COLUMNS NATURAL WOOD SEMI-TRANSPAREN

T STAIN
9 COMPOSITE FRAME WINDOWS & DOORS BLACK FACTORY PAINT
10 INSULATED METAL GARAGE DOORS BLACK FACTORY PAINT
11 WOOD DECKING BROWN OPAQUE STAIN
12 STEEL BEAM BLACK PAINT

# Description Date
1 DRB Submission 04/19/22

70



LEVEL 1

PLATE 2

4'
-0

"
9'
-0

"
10

'-0
"

11
'-6

"
6"

10
'-9

"

LEVEL 1

PLATE 2

4'
-0

"
9'
-0

"
10

'-0
"

11
'-6

"
6"

4'
-0

"
9'
-0

"

13
'-0

"

EQ
EQ

HE
IG

H
T 

@
 M

ID
-P

O
IN

T 
O

F 
R
O

O
F

27
'-9

 3
/4

"

7875.6' MID-POINT OF ROOF

GRADE: 7847.8'

m
p

p
 d

e
si

g
n

 s
h

o
p

, i
n

c
. 

PO
 B

o
x 

28
8

G
yp

su
m

, C
O

 8
16

37
(9

70
) 

39
0-

49
31

m
ic

h
a

e
l@

m
p

p
d

e
sig

n
sh

o
p

.c
o

m

N
o

w
h

e
re

 R
e

si
d

e
n

c
e

Pa
rc

e
l N

u
m

b
e

r: 
21

03
-2

62
-2

2-
00

2
Lo

t 
7A

, D
BC

 S
ub

d
iv

isi
o

n
38

6 
Ta

yl
o

r S
tr

e
t

M
in

tu
rn

, C
O

 8
16

45

EXTERIOR METERIAL LEGEND

Key Material Manufacturer Model Color Finish Notes
1 ASPHALT SHINGLES WEATHERED WOOD LIFE TIME WARARNTY
2 2x WOOD FASCIA BLACK SEMI-TRANSPAREN

T STAIN
3 VERTICAL WOOD SIDING DARK GREY SEMI-TRANSPAREN

T STAIN
4 Soffit NATURAL

CEDAR-TONE
SEMI-TRANSPAREN
T STAIN

5 CORRUGATED COR-TEN SIDING NATURAL RUST
6 2x RS FASCIA BLACK SEMI-TRANSPAREN

T STAIN
7 METAL RAILING W/ WOOD TOP RAIL BLACK POWDER COAT
8 6X6 D.F. WOOD COLUMNS NATURAL WOOD SEMI-TRANSPAREN

T STAIN
9 COMPOSITE FRAME WINDOWS & DOORS BLACK FACTORY PAINT
10 INSULATED METAL GARAGE DOORS BLACK FACTORY PAINT
11 WOOD DECKING BROWN OPAQUE STAIN
12 STEEL BEAM BLACK PAINT

# Description Date
1 DRB Submission 04/19/22

71



LEVEL 1

PLATE 2

4'
-0

"
9'
-0

"
10

'-0
"

11
'-6

"
6"

LEVEL 1

PLATE 2

4'
-0

"
9'
-0

"
10

'-0
"

11
'-6

"
6"

0
.2

45
29

m
p

p
 d

e
si

g
n

 s
h

o
p

, i
n

c
. 

PO
 B

o
x 

28
8

G
yp

su
m

, C
O

 8
16

37
(9

70
) 

39
0-

49
31

m
ic

h
a

e
l@

m
p

p
d

e
sig

n
sh

o
p

.c
o

m

N
o

w
h

e
re

 R
e

si
d

e
n

c
e

Pa
rc

e
l N

u
m

b
e

r: 
21

03
-2

62
-2

2-
00

2
Lo

t 
7A

, D
BC

 S
ub

d
iv

isi
o

n
38

6 
Ta

yl
o

r S
tr

e
t

M
in

tu
rn

, C
O

 8
16

45

# Description Date
1 DRB Submission 04/19/22

72



LEVEL 1

PLATE 2

10
'-9

"
11

'-6
"

6"

0
.2

45
29

LEVEL 1

PLATE 2

m
p

p
 d

e
si

g
n

 s
h

o
p

, i
n

c
. 

PO
 B

o
x 

28
8

G
yp

su
m

, C
O

 8
16

37
(9

70
) 

39
0-

49
31

m
ic

h
a

e
l@

m
p

p
d

e
sig

n
sh

o
p

.c
o

m

N
o

w
h

e
re

 R
e

si
d

e
n

c
e

Pa
rc

e
l N

u
m

b
e

r: 
21

03
-2

62
-2

2-
00

2
Lo

t 
7A

, D
BC

 S
ub

d
iv

isi
o

n
38

6 
Ta

yl
o

r S
tr

e
t

M
in

tu
rn

, C
O

 8
16

45

# Description Date
1 DRB Submission 04/19/22

73



LEVEL 1

PLATE 2

10
'-0

"
11

'-6
"

6"

10
'-9

"

LEVEL 1

PLATE 2

10
'-0

"
11

'-6
"

6"

m
p

p
 d

e
si

g
n

 s
h

o
p

, i
n

c
. 

PO
 B

o
x 

28
8

G
yp

su
m

, C
O

 8
16

37
(9

70
) 

39
0-

49
31

m
ic

h
a

e
l@

m
p

p
d

e
sig

n
sh

o
p

.c
o

m

N
o

w
h

e
re

 R
e

si
d

e
n

c
e

Pa
rc

e
l N

u
m

b
e

r: 
21

03
-2

62
-2

2-
00

2
Lo

t 
7A

, D
BC

 S
ub

d
iv

isi
o

n
38

6 
Ta

yl
o

r S
tr

e
t

M
in

tu
rn

, C
O

 8
16

45

# Description Date
1 DRB Submission 04/19/22

74



LEVEL 1

PLATE 2

10
'-0

"
11

'-6
"

6"

LEVEL 1

PLATE 2

m
p

p
 d

e
si

g
n

 s
h

o
p

, i
n

c
. 

PO
 B

o
x 

28
8

G
yp

su
m

, C
O

 8
16

37
(9

70
) 

39
0-

49
31

m
ic

h
a

e
l@

m
p

p
d

e
sig

n
sh

o
p

.c
o

m

N
o

w
h

e
re

 R
e

si
d

e
n

c
e

Pa
rc

e
l N

u
m

b
e

r: 
21

03
-2

62
-2

2-
00

2
Lo

t 
7A

, D
BC

 S
ub

d
iv

isi
o

n
38

6 
Ta

yl
o

r S
tr

e
t

M
in

tu
rn

, C
O

 8
16

45

# Description Date
1 DRB Submission 04/19/22

75



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 1

Design Review Board Hearing
__________________________________________________________

Jones Residence Variance Request
832 Main Street

______________________________________________________________________________

Hearing Date: May 11, 2022
File Name and Process: Jones Variance Request
Owner/Applicant: Pamela and Craig Jones
Representative: Michael Pukas, MPP Design Shop, Inc.
Legal Description: South Minturn Addition, Lot 35
Address: 832 Main Street
Zoning: South Town Character Area Residential Zone District
Staff Member: Madison Harris, Planner I
Recommendation: Approval
______________________________________________________________________________

Staff Report

I. Summary of Request:

The Applicants, Pamela and Craig Jones, request review of a safety fence located within the 30
foot live stream setback at 832 Main Street in the South Town Residential Zone District. The 
Applicant s Representative Michael Pukas has been proactive in meeting with Town staff prior 
to submitting the variance request. 

Proposed Plans
The applicant is proposing to install a new safety fence at the edge of a steep embankment 
leading to Eagle River within the live stream setback. The new safety fence would be 3.5 feet 
tall, constructed with
the pets, family, and friends from falling down the steep riverbank. 

Section 16-2-50 Specific Lot Requirements and Dimensional Standards, of the Minturn 
Municipal Code (MMC) is applicable with regard to improvements within the stream setback:

(a) Portions of a lot contained in a river or creek as defined by the ordinary 
high-water mark, shall not be included in the lot's square footage for purposes of 

Minturn Planning Department
Minturn Town Center
302 Pine Street
Minturn, Colorado 81645

Minturn Planning Commission
Chair Lynn Teach

Jeff Armistead
Michael Boyd

Elliot Hovey
Tom Priest

76



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 2 

 

calculating the maximum building lot coverage or the maximum impervious surface 
area. 
(b) Setback from river/creeks. A strip of land measured horizontally from the 
ordinary highwater mark on each side of any live creek shall be protected in its 
natural state. If necessary to protect the river or creek, additional river/creek 
setback may be required. Underground utilities may be located in the river/creek 
setback; provided that there is no practical alternative location for such utilities, 
that plans are approved by the Town Council as a conditional use and that all 
construction scars are revegetated. Otherwise, river and creek setbacks are to 
remain natural vegetation. 
(c) The river or creek setback shall remain, or be re-vegetated to, natural 
riparian vegetation. No manmade structures may be placed in the river or creek 
setback except as permitted by this Chapter 16. 

 
As reference in subparagraph (b) above, the only apparent improvements permitted within the 
live stream setback area are underground utilities which would be approved via Conditional 
Use Permit. Staff does not believe Section 16-2-50 of the MMC contemplates situations such 
as the one presented at the Jones residence where there may be a valid need for fence or other 
enclosure for safety reasons. 

 
The Applicant is requesting a variance from the following: 

 30 Foot Live Stream Setback  Based on the topography of the land and 
previous disturbances, there is at one point a rapid change in elevation of about 
10 feet. This change in elevation is within the 30 foot live stream setback, but due 
to safety reasons needs to be fenced off. 

 
At this time, staff can only suggest that a variance is appropriate for the rear yard safety fence 
based on extraordinary circumstances which pose safety concerns. 

 
Staff is recommending approval of the variance request from the strict interpretation and 
application of the Town s Setback requirements. 

 
II. Zoning Analysis: 
 
Zoning 
The subject property is located within the  Town Character  Residential Zone 
District, described as follows: 
 

(a) The neighborhood is bisected by Highway 24 and is characterized by single-
family residences and accessory buildings. The residences are typically one 
(1) and two (2) stories, with outbuildings on larger lots than found in Old 
Town. Low-density residential and public recreational and open space use 
along the Eagle River is encouraged. Higher density residential development 
can be accommodated on the south side of Main Street if it remains in 
character and all impacts are adequately addressed. 

(b) The purpose of this area is to provide for continued residential use that 
benefits from proximity along the Eagle River. New development and 

77



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 3 

 

redevelopment should preserve the unique character and scale of the 
neighborhood. An objective is to retain the residential areas as quiet and 
safe neighborhoods while allowing for compatible and appropriate nearby 
commercial. This area can accommodate reasonable growth where land and 
services are available. 
       - Town of Minturn Town Code Section 16-7-20 

 
 

Figure 1: South Town Character Area Zoning Map 

 
 

IV. Applicable Standards and Design Guideline Criteria: 
 

Variance 
The Town Code provides the following purpose, intent and criteria for the approval of a 
variance: 

 
 Sec. 16-21-690. - Variances. 

(a)   Purpose of provisions; limitations. 
(1)   In order to prevent or to lessen such practical difficulties and unnecessary 
physical hardships inconsistent with the objectives of this Chapter as would 
result from strict or literal interpretation and enforcement, variances from 
certain regulations may be granted. Cost or inconvenience to the applicant of 
strict or literal compliance with a regulation shall not be a reason for granting 
a variance. 

832 Main Street 

78



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 4 

 

(2)   Variances may be granted only with respect to the development standards 
prescribed for each zone, including lot area and site dimensions, setbacks, 
distances between buildings, height, density, site coverage, usable open space, 
landscaping, site development and parking and loading requirements. 
(3)   The power to extend variances does not extend to the use regulations 
prescribed for each district because the flexibility necessary to avoid results 
inconsistent with the objectives of this Chapter is provided by Sections 16-21-
620, Conditional Use Permits, and Division 3 of this Article, Amendments to 
text of Land Use Regulations or Character Area and Zone District Map.  

  
(c) Approval criteria. Before acting on a variance application, the Planning 
Commission and the Zoning Board of Appeals shall consider the following factors with 
respect to the requested variance: 

(1)   The relationship of the requested variance to other existing or potential 
uses and structures in the vicinity; 
(2)   The degree to which relief from the strict or literal interpretation and 
enforcement of a specified regulation is necessary to achieve compatibility and 
uniformity of treatment among sites in the vicinity, or to attain the objectives 
of this Chapter without grant of special privilege; 
(3)   The effect of the requested variance on light and air, distribution of 
population, transportation and traffic facilities, public facilities and utilities 
and public safety; and 
(4)   Such other factors and criteria as the Planning Commission and Zoning 
Board of Appeals deem applicable to the proposed variance. 

 
(d)   Findings required. The Planning Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals shall 
make the following findings before granting a variance: 

(1)   There are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions 
applicable to the site of the variance that do not apply generally to other 
properties in the same zone; 
(2)   The exceptional or extraordinary circumstances of the site create a 
situation in which the strict, literal interpretation and enforcement 
of the specified regulation would result in practical difficulty or unnecessary 
physical hardship inconsistent with the objectives of this Chapter; 
(3)   That the granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public 
health, safety or welfare or materially injurious to properties or improvements 
in the vicinity and will not result in substantial impairment to the purposes of 
this Chapter. 

(4)   There is no substantial impairment to the public that would result from the 
granting of the variance.  

 
Staff Response: 
As noted above, the Planning Commission must make positive findings for all four variance 
criteria. Although no one criterion should be weighted differently or considered more 
important, the first two criteria are typically the most difficult to establish. 

 

79



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 5 

 

nd 
literally to their property. 

 
Staff suggests that the intention of the 30 foot live stream setback is to maintain a riparian area 
and the natural riverbank for the health of the river. This section of riverbank has long been 
disturbed and is currently a rock retaining wall. The Applicant s representative will be 
providing pictures at the public hearing of the current conditions.  

 
With essentially a 10 foot drop off at one point, and pets, family, and friends anticipated using 
the back yard, there may be a case for physical hardship and/or practical difficulty to allow for 
the construction of a safety fence.  
 
VI. Staff Recommendation and Suggested Conditions: 
Staff 

Live Stream Setback limits at 832 Main Street may be granted as the 
request generally meets all variance criteria, particularly for physical hardship and practical 
difficulty. 

 
Staff is recommending approval of the variance request. 

 

80



Project Location
Street Address:

Zoning: Parcel Number(s):

Application Request:

Applicant:
Name:

Mailing Address:

Phone: Email:

Property Owner:
Name:

Mailing Address:

Phone: Email:

Required Information:
Lot Size: Type of Residence (Single 

Family, ADU, Duplex)
# of Bedrooms # On-site Parking Spaces

# of Stories: Snow storage sq ft: Building Footprint sq ft: Total sq ft Impervious Surface: 

Project Name:

Fee Paid:____________         Date Received:________________   Planner:______________________________

Signature:

VARIANCE APPLICATION

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT
P.O. Box 309 302 Pine Street Minturn, Colorado 81649-0309

Phone:  970-827-5645 Fax: 970-827-5545 Email: planner@minturn.org

81



Applicant Staff

Page 1 of 2  
Variance Application Checklist 

VARIANCE APPLICATION 

SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST REQUIREMENTS 
(TO BE INCLUDED WITH APPLICATION) 

Application Fee (Non-Refundable application fee shall be collected) 
Planning Commission Review - $5

RESPOND TO THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS: 
1. Please describe the nature of the requested variance:______________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________

2. Are there exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions applicable to the site of the
variance that does not apply generally to other properties in the same zone?  (If yes, please
elaborate):__________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________

3. Do the exceptional or extraordinary circumstances of the site create a situation in which the strict,
literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified regulation result in practical difficulty or
unnecessary physical hardship inconsistent with the objectives of the zone code! (if yes, please
elaborate):__________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________

Vicinity Map
-- Directional Map indicating how to get to the Property involved in the request. 

Zoning of Property

   Improvement Location Certificate of Survey (ILC or ILS)  

Site Plan showing Precise Nature of the Proposed Use  To Scale 

Scaled Drawings of Proposed Design of Structure
o Plan View and Sections

Building Heights  all 4 directions N/S/E/W

Topography

82



Page 2 of 2  
Variance Application Checklist 

Building Location

Setbacks

River or Creek Setbacks

Parking Plan

Traffic Circulation
o Location and Width of Existing and Proposed Access Points
o Location of Existing Driveways and Intersections

Landscaped Area Plan

Approximate Location of Existing Wooded Areas and Rock Outcrops

Location and Type of Existing and Proposed Easements

Utility Easements

Drainage Features

Preliminary Building Plans and Elevations 
Indicates Dimensions

General Appearance

Scale

Interior Plan for the Buildings

Elements needed on the Site Plan 
Scale

North Arrow

Date Prepared

Lot Dimensions, Area, Entire Site Acreage

Architecture Details  Materials Board
Windows Placement and Color

Doors Placement and Color

Siding Type and Color

Roof Material Type and Color

Paint Color

The Planning Commission and Town Council are required to make the following findings before granting a 
variance: 

1. There are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions applicable to the site of the
variance that do not apply generally to other properties in the same zone;

2. The exceptional or extraordinary circumstances of the site create a situation in which the strict,
literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified regulation would result in practical
difficulty or unnecessary physical hardship inconsistent with the objectives of the zoning code;

3. That the granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare
or materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity and will not result in
substantial impairment to the purposes of the zoning code;

4. There is no substantial impairment to the public that would result from the granting of the
variance.

83



LETTER mpp design shop 
  
 PO Box 288 
 Gypsum, CO 81637 
 (970) 390-4931 
 michael@mppdesignshop.com 
 
 

 

2005_Jones_Variance-Application_04-26-2022.docx  Page 1 of 1 

April 26, 2022 
 

Tel:  (970) 827-5645 
Fax:  (970) 827-5545 
e-mail: planner@minturn.org 
 
Regarding: Jones Residence 
 
Location:  832 Main Street 
 Minturn, CO 81645 
 Parcel Number: 2103-351-02-003 
 South Minturn Addition, Lot 35 
 
This is a request for a Variance Application to construct a safety fence high water mark 
setback along the north and south property lines, and along the top of the rock wall adjacent to the 
river bank.  
 
At some point in the past, the lot had been filled in - to make it level to the street, 
and a steep rock wall was constructed along the river bank. Previous owners of the property had 
constructed a fence, deck and shed that covered the majority of the back portion of the lot. These 
improvements were made prior to the Minturn Municipal Code being created, and prior to the 

All of the previous improvements were poorly 
constructed originally, had not been maintained over time, and were not suitable for continued use. All 
such existing prior improvements have been removed.  
 
When the application for design review for the proposed Jones Residence was first presented in March 
2021, the safety fence was discussed. The owners are concerned about the safety of the pets, and family 
and friends, and would like to re-construct a similar safety fence as was previously existing. The proposed 
safety fence would encroach into t
lines, and along the top of the rock wall adjacent to river on the east side of the lot. The fence would be 

-
4x4 welded wire mesh, painted black.  
 
It is understood that the intention of the 30
vegetation along the river corridor. However, since the lot has been filled in and the steep rock wall has 
been constructed, the current state of the lot is far from a natural state.  
 
 
Thank you for your consideration.  
 
SIGNED: Michael Pukas 
 

 
 

Town of Minturn 
Attention:  Planning Department 
302 Pine Street 
P.O. Box 309 
Minturn, CO 81645 

84



m
p

p
 d

e
si

g
n

 s
h

o
p

, i
n

c
. 

PO
 B

o
x 

28
8

G
yp

su
m

, C
O

 8
16

37
(9

70
) 

39
0-

49
31

m
ic

h
a

e
l@

m
p

p
d

e
sig

n
sh

o
p

.c
o

m

Jo
n

e
s 

R
e

si
d

e
n

c
e

83
2 

M
a

in
 S

tr
e

e
t

M
in

tu
rn

, C
O

 8
16

45
Pa

rc
e

l N
u

m
b

e
r: 

21
03

-3
51

-0
2-

00
3

So
ut

h
 M

in
tu

rn
 A

d
d

iti
o

n
, L

o
t 

35

# Description Date
18 Variance 04/26/22

85



86



EDGE OF WATER

100 YEAR FLOO
WATER MARK (A
ELEVATION: 787

EAGLE RIVER

EXISTING ROCK WALL

EXISTING ROCK WALL
EXISTING WOOD FENCE

EXISTING ROCK WALL

OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

F ROADWAY ASPHALT

CONCRETE SIDEWALK
CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

EXISTING ROCK LINER

EXISTING WOOD FENCE

FOUND 2" ALUMINUM CAP LS 37902

MAJOR CONTOUR (TYP.)

NOR CONTOUR (TYP.)

10
.0
' 
SE
TB

A
C
K

30
.0
' 
S E
TB

A
C
K

20
.0
'

SE
TB
AC
K

5.0'
SETBACK

5.0'
SETBACK LOT 35

832 MAIN ST
0.13 ACRES

LOT 36

N3
8°
03
'2
6"
E 
12
3.
45
'

S3
8°
08
'0
0"
W 
10
5.
00
'

N69°38'40"W 52.27'

S49°01'00"E 50.00'

NE
IG
HB
OR
IN
G 
HO
US
E

MAIN STREET

US HIGHWAY 24

80' R.O.W.

wv

 7871 

 7872 

 7873 

 7873 

 7874 

 7875 
 7876 

 7877 
 7878 

 7879 

 7880 

 7881 

 7882 

 7883 

 7872 

 7873 

 7874 
 7875  7876  7877 

 7878 
 7879 

 7880 
 7881 

 7882 

 78
83

 

 78
84

 

 78
85 

 7884 

 78
84 

 7885 

9.0
'

21
.0
' 6.0'

2%

2%

12.0'

PR
O
PO

SE
D 

SA
FE

TY
 F

EN
CE

PR
OP

OS
ED

 S
AF

ET
Y 

FE
NC

E

PROPOSED SAFETY FENCE

MAX
6'-0"

MAX
6'-0"

1 1/2" 3 1/2" 1 1/2" 1 1/2" 3 1/2" 1 1/2" 1 1/2" 3 1/2"1 1/2"

m
p

p
 d

e
si

g
n

 s
h

o
p

, i
n

c
. 

PO
 B

o
x 

28
8

G
yp

su
m

, C
O

 8
16

37
(9

70
) 

39
0-

49
31

m
ic

h
a

e
l@

m
p

p
d

e
sig

n
sh

o
p

.c
o

m

Jo
n

e
s 

R
e

si
d

e
n

c
e

83
2 

M
a

in
 S

tr
e

e
t

M
in

tu
rn

, C
O

 8
16

45
Pa

rc
e

l N
u

m
b

e
r: 

21
03

-3
51

-0
2-

00
3

So
ut

h
 M

in
tu

rn
 A

d
d

iti
o

n
, L

o
t 

35

# Description Date
18 Variance 04/26/22

LOT AREA & ALLOWABLE COVERAGE

EFFECTIVE LOT AREA BUILDING LOT COVERAGE
- 40%

IMPERVIOUS SURFACE
COVERAGE - 50%

5,508 SF 2,203 SF 2,754 SF

LOT AREA

Name Area

LOT AREA 5,695 SF
EFFECTIVE LOT AREA 5,508 SF

87



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 1

Planning Commission Public Hearing
__________________________________________________________

International Trade Center Building

Conditional Use Permit for Residential Land Use
______________________________________________________________________________

Hearing Date: May 11, 2022
File Name and Process: International Trade Center Building - Conditional Use Permit
Owner/Applicant: Minturn International, LLC.
Representative: Tim McGuire
Legal Description: Lots 1-4, Block B, Booco Subdivision
Zoning: Old Town Character Area - Old Town Commercial Zone District
Staff: Scot Hunn, Planning Director

Madison Harris, Planner I

Recommendation: Approval, with Conditions
______________________________________________________________________________

Staff Report

I. Summary of Request:

The Applicant, Minturn International, LLC., requests review of a new Conditional Use Permit for 
residential and professional office uses at the International Trade Center Building (ITCB) located 
at 164 Railroad Avenue.

Minturn Planning Commission
Chair Lynn Teach

Jeff Armistead
Michael Boyd

Elliot Hovey
Tom Priest

Minturn Planning Department
Minturn Town Center
302 Pine Street
Minturn, Colorado 81645

88



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 2

Figure 1: Vicinity Map

Minturn International, LLC., purchased the International Trade Center Building in December 
2020. The ITCB has historically been used for a mix of professional office/commercial and 
residential purposes. Prior to and following the purchase of the ITCB, the Applicant conducted 
due diligence including meeting with Town of Minturn staff to verify existing uses within the ITC 
building, previous approvals of existing uses, and current code requirements to allow for continued 
use of the property for commercial and residential purposes. A result of that due diligence was the 
realization that several existing uses within the building had never been formally approved via the 
Conditional Use Permit process. Simply, the Tow -existent or 
inconsistent with regard to existing uses and improvements.

The Applicant is now proposing to bring all existing and proposed uses within the ITCB into 
compliance with the zoning requirements by applying for a CUP.

89



 

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 3 

 

As outlined within this report, staff is recommending approval with conditions of the 
International Trade Center Building Conditional Use Permit because the requested permit 

. 
 
II. Summary of Process and Code Requirements: 
  
This is a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) review by the Town of Minturn Planning Commission. In 
this role, the Planning Commission is responsible for review of CUPs and for forwarding 
recommendations to the Town of Minturn Town Council for approval, for approval with 
conditions, or denial of CUP requests in accordance with the standards, criteria and findings 
outlined in Section 16-21-620  Conditional Use, Minturn Municipal Code. 
 

on and any action of the Town of Minturn 
Town Council should be based on the following standards and findings: 
 
(e) Conditions and procedure of issuance. 
 

(1) The Town Council may approve the application as submitted or may approve the 
application subject to such modifications or conditions as it deems necessary to 
accomplish the purpose of this Article, or the Town Council may deny the application 

 
(d) Administrative procedure. 
 

(1) Upon receipt of a completed and proper application, the Planning Director shall set a 
public hearing for the Planning Commission and give public notice as required by this 
Chapter. 

 
(2) Criteria; findings. Before acting on a conditional use permit application, the Planning 

Commission and Town Council shall consider the following factors with respect to the 
proposed use: 

 
a. The relationship and impact of the use on the community development objectives of 

the Town. 
 
b. The effect of the use on distribution of population, transportation, utilities, schools, 

parks and recreational facilities and other public facilities and public facility 
needs. 

 
c. The effect upon traffic, with particular reference to congestion, automotive and 

pedestrian safety, traffic flow and control, access, maneuverability and snow 
removal. 

 
d. The effect upon the character of the area in which the proposed use is to be located, 

including the scale and bulk of the proposed use in relation to surrounding uses, 
the amount of noise, lighting and glare, dust and compatibility of the use with the 
Character Area it is in and surrounding areas. 

90



 

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 4 

 

 
e. Necessary findings. The Planning Commission and Town Council shall make the 

following findings before making a recommendation or decision that a conditional 
use permit be granted: 

 
1. That the proposed location of the use is in accordance with the purposes of this 

Chapter, the Community Plan and the purposes of the zone in which the site is 
located. 

 
2. That the proposed location of the use and the conditions under which it would 

be operated or maintained will not be detrimental to the public health, safety 
or welfare, or materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity. 

 
3. That the proposed use will comply with each of the applicable provisions of this 

Chapter. 
 
III.  Chronology/Background: 
 
As noted above, the Applicant purchased the International Trade Center Building in 2020 with 
intentions to maintain existing, historic professional office and multi-family residential uses; to 
finish and/or renovate existing unused spaces into four (4) additional residential units; and, to seek 
formal approval of those uses (namely professional office and multi-family residential) requiring 
a Conditional Use Permit within the Old Town Commercial Zone District. Per the application 
narrative: 
 

existing historic conditional uses that have been ongoing at the Property for at least the 
past two decades (and likely much longer). Nearly 100 years ago, the building was a YMCA 
that housed railroad workers, through the years it has been a mix of residential and 
commercial use. The existing sign on the building which is well over a decade old indicates 
it is "Commercial and Residential". In addition to recognizing the existing uses, we are 
proposing to extend the conditional use permit to include the conversion of five existing 
commercial units into four additional residential units to be located on the upper floors of 

 
 
The Applicant has worked diligently with Town staff and others to evaluate existing conditions of 
the building, as well as existing uses and any previous approvals for existing uses. The result has 
been a collaborative relationship with the Town and other service providers (the Water Authority) 
to ensure that proposed uses can be properly permitted and served. 
 
IV. Zoning Analysis: 
 
Zoning 

Old Town Commercial Zone District. 
The description and purposes of the Old Town Commercial Zone District are as follows: 
 

91



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 5

visitors and to promote the development of the Town's retail commercial district along 
Highway 24 and Main Street. Accommodation of sales tax-generating commercial uses 
and residential units can enhance Old Town vitality while maintaining the visual character 
and scale. An objective is to facilitate small business development and economic vitality 
with land uses that are compatible and supportive, such as retail, office, institutional and 

- Town of Minturn Municipal Code Section 16-6-30

Figure 3: Old Town Character Area Zoning Map

Dimensional Limitations and Development Standards
No improvements or alterations are proposed for the International Trade Center Building that 
would impact or invoke typical dimensional limitations such as setbacks, building height, lot, or 
impervious coverage. However, the addition of four (4) more multi-family residential units does 
trigger the parking regulations. The application contains a site plan showing twenty-three (23) 
existing parking spaces available on-site as well as detailed calculations for all existing and 
proposed units and uses within the building along with their corresponding parking requirements. 
Per the application:

ITCB

92



 

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 6 

 

The number of on-site parking spaces required based on existing uses and square footage 
is 28 spaces. The conversion of the second-floor offices into residential units will increase 
the number of spaces by 2 to 30. As allowed in Section 16-16-70 of the Town codes, we are 
requesting that the Planning Director allow a reduction in parking capacity as shown in 
the Net Parking row above. To arrive at this net parking figure, we are proposing that 
offices spaces (highlighted in red) are shared with the residential users since the offices at 
the building operate between 9 am  5 pm during the week while our residents typically 
work during those times. Therefore, we are requesting that the office space not contribute 
to the overall parking requirement.  

 
Section 16-16-70  Supplemental Parking and Loading Standards,  of the Minturn 
Municipal Code states the following: 

(a) Parking requirements for two (2) or more uses: The off-street parking space required 
for two (2) or more uses is the combined total of parking spaces required by this Article 
for both or all uses unless it can be demonstrated to the Planning Director that joint 
parking arrangements are acceptable.  

Staff analyzes the parking requirements in Section V  Issues and Discussion Topics, below. 
 
V. Issues and Discussion Topics: 
 
Parking 
The Applicant has provided detailed calculations for existing and proposed parking requirements 
and staff has conducted a site visit to the International Trade Center Building to better understand 
existing uses within the building as well as available parking. In this case, staff suggests that the 

required to provide a parking management program or plan to the Town as a condition of any CUP 
approval. Because the building will be managed by the new ownership group, staff believes that 
any shared parking plan or arrangement can also be best managed by the ownership or a separate 
management company to ensure that parking is, in fact, shared without major incident or conflicts. 
The Planning Director is recommending approval of a shared or joint parking arrangement in 
conformance with suggested Condition No. 1 found in Section VII  Staff Recommendation, on 
page 9. 
 
Water Taps/SFEs 
The Applicant has met several times with the Town staff as well as Eagle River Water and 
Sanitation District to understand and confirm existing water taps already in use at the property, as 
well as the need for any additional taps (which would be limited due to the current Water Tap 
Moratorium). Staff and the District have determined that the property - specifically the proposed 
residential uses - can be served. There are currently 8.8 SFEs (Single-Family Equivalents) in use 
and the Applicant may purchase up to three (3) additional SFEs worth of water from the Town 
under the current Water Tap Moratorium for a total of 11.8 SFEs. The Applicant confirmed with 
the Town and the District that the total usage including existing and proposed commercial and 
residential uses equals 10.8 SFEs. 
 

93



 

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 7 

 

VI. Staff Findings and Analysis: 

The following section provides staff responses to each of the applicable Conditional Use criteria.  
 

a. The relationship and impact of the use on the community development objectives of the 
Town. 

 
Staff Response: 
The continued use of the historic International Trade Center Building for professional 
office and multi-family uses is in line with the purpose, intent and objectives of the Old 

 and 
environmental goals and policies.  

 
b. The effect of the use on distribution of population, transportation, utilities, schools, 

parks and recreational facilities and other public facilities and public facility needs. 
 

Staff Response: 
The International Trade Center Building has been used for years - decades - as a mixed-
use building, housing residential and commercial uses. The proposed conversion of 
existing spaces into residential units continues this trend and makes best use of the building 
and its l
location relative to Main Street, the continued and slightly expanded residential uses are 
appropriate and will contribute to the vitality of the Old Town area by placing population 
near transportation, shopping, dining, and park areas (Eagle River Park) while ensuring 
that future population growth in this area, however small, is served by existing public 
facilities and infrastructure. 

 
c. The effect upon traffic, with particular reference to congestion, automotive and 

pedestrian safety, traffic flow and control, access, maneuverability and snow removal. 
 

Staff Response: 
The existing conditions at the International Trade Center Building include on-site parking, 
along with some conflict points between Railroad Avenue and the subject property 
(Railroad Avenue encroaches upon the ITCB property). The Applicant has addressed 
existing conditions and parking within the application and has met with Town staff to 
discuss and confirm availability of lease parking from the Town if necessary to fulfill 
parking requirements. However, additional opportunities exist to address pedestrian safety 
in the vicinity of the ITCB. The Applicant and the Town have discussed the potential for 
improvements to pedestrian access behind the building (south side of the building, along 
the Eagle River) if a more global solution - one diverting pedestrian traffic away from 
Railroad Avenue - involving the ITCB and Saloon properties can be reached.  

 
d. The effect upon the character of the area in which the proposed use is to be located, 

including the scale and bulk of the proposed use in relation to surrounding uses, the 
amount of noise, lighting and glare, dust and compatibility of the use with the Character 
Area it is in and surrounding areas. 

94



 

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 8 

 

 
Staff Response:
While no physical improvements or expansions are proposed to the exterior of the existing 
International Trade Center Building, additional residential use within the existing building 
may increase the level of activity and vitality in and around the building. As noted in the 
application, the building has been used for years for office, storage, and residential uses. 
This is not anticipated or desired by the building owner to change. Therefore, formally 
recognizing existing residential units/uses, while adding four (4) more residential units 
should not have any material impact on the character of the area by way of noise, lighting, 
glare or dust. The uses are compatible with other residential and commercial uses occurring 
at the Minturn Mountain Hotel, the Minturn Towne Homes, the Saloon restaurant, and the 
Eagle River Inn property. 

 
e. Necessary findings. The Planning Commission and Town Council shall make the 

following findings before making a recommendation or decision that a conditional use 
permit be granted: 

 
1. That the proposed location of the use is in accordance with the purposes of this 

Chapter, the Community Plan and the purposes of the zone in which the site is 
located. 

 
Staff Response: 
Generally, the subject site is located within a historically residential or mixed use area, 

Minturn Municipal Code sets forth the following description for the Old Town 
Commercial Zone District: 

 
The Old Town Commercial Zone is located on either end of the 100 Block 

Commercial Zone. The Old Town Commercial Zone is also characterized by a 
compact commercial core area bisected by Main Street or Highway 24. The Old 
Town Commercial Zone, however, is adjacent to primary residential areas and 
does not extend off of the Highway 24/Main Street corridor. The area consists of 
businesses and residences with an identity of the historic commercial core that is 

 
 

the Zone District: 
 

commercial services to residents 
and visitors and to promote the development of the Town's retail commercial 
district along Highway 24 and Main Street. Accommodation of sales tax-generating 
commercial uses and residential units can enhance Old Town vitality while 
maintaining the visual character and scale. An objective is to facilitate small 
business development and economic vitality with land uses that are compatible and 
supportive, such as retail, office, institutional and residential uses, while 
maintain  

95



 

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 9 

 

 
As mentioned in the application and as verified by staff, the ITCB has been used for 
years - decades - for essentially the same mix of office/commercial and residential uses 
serving largely local businesses and residents who make their living in and around 
Minturn. Formally recognizing and approving existing residential uses through the 
Conditional Use process as well as allowing for a small increase in the number of 
residential units (while maintaining commercial uses) aligns with the purpose and 
objectives of the Old Town Commercial Zone District by enhancing the vitality of the 
area, facilitating and/or supporting existing small businesses in the Town, and ensuring 
overall compatibility with surrounding uses. 
 

2. That the proposed location of the use and the conditions under which it would be 
operated or maintained will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, 
or materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity. 

 
Staff Response: 
The proposed ongoing use of the International Trade Center Building for 
office/commercial and residential uses should not be detrimental to the public health, 
safety or welfare, nor should such ongoing use be materially injurious to the properties 
or improvements in the vicinity if the site is maintained in accordance with the 
standards of the Minturn Municipal Code and any conditions of approval. 

 
3. That the proposed use will comply with each of the applicable provisions of this 

Chapter. 
 

Staff Response: 
Proposed improvements (physical alteration of existing spaces within the International 
Trade Center Building) will be permitted via the building permit process and therefore 

tionally, 
with a CUP approval for the ITCB, the Town will effectively be verifying that the 
proposed uses do, in fact, comply with the provisions of Chapter 16 - Zoning of the 
Minturn Municipal Code. 
 
 

VII. Staff Recommendation: Approval, with Conditions 
 
Staff is recommending approval, with conditions of the International Trade Center Building 

comprehensive plan goals. Should the Planning Commission choose to recommend approval of 
the ITCB Conditional Use Permit request, the following condition(s) are suggested: 
 

1. Prior to the issuance of any Certificate of Occupancy for any new residential units 
constructed within the International Trade Center Building (ITCB), the Applicant shall 
provide a parking management plan to the Town which the Town may approve at its 
discretion. The parking management plan may include but not be limited to a permit 
parking, monitoring, and enforcement system and protocols to be managed by the building 

96



 

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 10 

 

owner and/or management company on behalf of the building owner. The parking 
management plan shall run with the use of the ITCB and shall be binding on any subsequent 
building owner until such time that the use of the building is changed or the Conditional 
Use Permit for professional office and multi-family residential uses is terminated, revoked 
or becomes abandoned. 

 
 
 

97



CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
P.O. Box 309 - 302 Pine Street- Minturn, Colorado 81649-0309

Phone: 970-827-5645 Email: planner@minturn.org

Project Name:

Project Location
Street Address:

Legal Description (Lot, Block, Subdivision): Parcel Number(s):

Application Request:

Applicant:
Name:

Mailing Address:

Phone: Email:

Property Owner:
Name:

Mailing Address:

Phone: Email:

Required Information:
Lot Size: Type of Residence (Single 

Family, ADU, Duplex)
# of Bedrooms # On-site Parking Spaces

# of Stories: Snow storage sq ft: Building Footprint sq ft: Total sq ft Impervious Surface:

Signature:

$

Fee Paid: Date Received: Planner:

98



CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION

SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST REQUIREMENTS
(TO BE INCLUDED WITH APPLICATION)

Applicant Staff

Application Form (Please fill out the Form and Return with the Packet)

Letter of Intent (As Detailed as Possible)
-- What is the purpose of the project including;

Relevant Background

Current Status of the Site

All Proposed Uses and Structures

How the Proposal Differs from what alreadyexists

Information regarding Easements or Dedicated Tracts, etc.

Vicinity Map
-- Directional Map indicating how to get to the Property involved in the request.

Improvement Location Certificate of Survey (ILC or ILS), as appropriate

Site Plan showing Precise Nature of the Proposed Use
Topography

Building Location

Parking Plan

Traffic Circulation
o Location and Width of Existing and Proposed AccessPoints
o Location of Existing Driveways and Intersections

Useable Open Space

Landscaped Area Plan

Approximate Location of Existing Wooded Areas and RockOutcrops

Location and Type of Existing and Proposed Easements

Utility Easements

Drainage Features

Elements needed on the Site Plan
Scale

North Arrow

Date Prepared

Lot Dimensions, Area, Entire Site Acreage

Description of precise nature of the proposed use and its operating characteristics and 
measures proposed to make the use compatible with other properties in vicinity. 

99



Minturn International LLC
PO Box 6285 
Avon, CO 81620 
802-473-0275 

 
Minturn Planning & Zoning 
Minturn Town Offices 
PO Box 309 
Minturn, CO 81645 
 
3/8/2022 
 
Dear Scot, 
 
Attached please find this revised Conditional Use permit application for the Minturn International Building 
at 164 Railroad Ave. in Minturn CO (the “Property”) that now includes responses to the suggestions from 
you 3/4/22 email.  As we discussed at our February 3, 2022, site meeting, Minturn International LLC, (the 
“Owners”) are looking to officially recognize the existing conditional uses that have been ongoing at the 
Property for at least the past two decades (and likely much longer).  Additionally, we would like to extend 
the conditional use permit to include the conversion of five existing units into four converted residential 
units to be located on the upper floors of the building.   
 
The Property is located in the Old Town Character Area within the Old Town Commercial Zone.  This 
zone “consists of businesses and residences with an identity of the historic commercial core that is 
distinct from other parts of the community.”  An objective of this area is to “facilitate small business 
development and economic vitality with land uses that are compatible and supportive, such as retail, 
office, institutional and residential uses, while maintaining the community scale.”  The Old Town Area 
Use Table indicates that “Multi-family dwellings” and “Professional Offices” are Conditional uses, 
although “Professional Activities” as well as “Business and office services” are a use by right. 
 
The current Owners purchased the Property in December of 2020.  In an October 21, 2020 email, your 
office indicated that the existing uses could continue but it was unclear if all of the existing uses were 
properly permitted, and even if they were properly permitted, if the Town had or maintained these 
permit records.  It is also our understanding that any existing uses can continue pursuant to the Town’s 
Pre-Existing Non-Conformities ordinance (Article 22).  Your office reviewed existing Town files in 
October of 2021 and were only able to find documentation of the permits allowing the change of 
building use from a former hotel into an office building in the 1990’s.   
 
Currently the building is a mix of office, light industry, residential and associated storage space (see 
Sheets A0.0-A0.3).  The Table below lists each unit, unit size, current use and parking requirements, as 
well as proposed; use, size and parking requirements based on Article 16 of the Town code.   The 
building current contains six residential units; one residential unit on the basement level, one residential 
unit on the first floor and four residential units on the second floor.  The building also contains several 
local business offices on the first and second floor.  As indicated on the Site Plan, the Property has 25 
parking spaces and ample snow storage on property.   
 
The proposal is to add four residential units to the building by converting five units (units 210, 220, 230, 
240 and 270) into four residential units as shown on the Proposed Second Floor Layout plan (sheet 

100



A1.2). In addition, any second floor offices would be moved to the first floor in an attempt to reduce the 
number of units currently used as Storage to help invigorate and better use first floor units.   

It is well documented in Eagle County of the dire need for more local housing.  All of the residential units 
in the building have long term locally employed occupants in them, some have been in the building for 
over a decade.  All of the residents work locally including occupations as teachers, food and beverage, 
construction, and sales.   All the existing offices are also occupied by upper Eagle County residents and 
two are occupied by Minturn residents.  We have sought to attract retail business to the Property but 
the lack of high visibility from any main roads, adequate parking, and pedestrian access from downtown 
Minturn have been significant deterrents. 
 
Currently there are no retail uses located on the north side of Bellm Bridge as the true commercial core 
of Minturn is located along Main Street from the 100 Block South (see attached Vicinity Plan).  It is the 
Owner’s goal to add much needed affordable residential units to the area while maintaining the existing 
first floor as mainly office use.  This is compatible with the surrounding residential uses which include 
the Minturn Mountain Motel, Eagle River Inn, and the Taylor Street Townhomes all of which are located 
within 100 yards of the Property.  The extension of the current uses and addition of four additional 
residential units is consistent with the objectives of the Old Town Commercial Zone.   

EXISTING AND PROPOSED USE TABLE 

 

Proposed Parking Plan 

Background - The number of on-site parking spaces currently required based on existing uses and 
square footage is 28 spaces as shown in the table above.  On any given day / evening, there are typically 
fewer than 14 vehicles parked at the building.   The Owners have not experienced a single incident when 

Current Use Current Tenant Size (s.f.)
Current 
Parking 

Requirments
Proposed Use Size (s.f.)

Proposed 
Parking 

Requirments

Parking Plan 
Allowance

Spaces #'s to 
be Included 

in Lease
150 Basement Res -1 - Bd Aspen S. 800 2 Res -1 - Bd 800 2 2 22, 25
100 Res - Studio Tim D. 490 2 Res - Studio 490 2 1 5
110 Office Brand On 490 2 Office 490 2 2 14, 15
120 Storage Barbara N 350 1 Light Ind. 350 1 0 Part of unit 110
130 Office Harrington Const. 495 2 Office 495 2 2 18, 13
140 Storage Wild Mtn Cellars 250 0 Office 250 0 1 19
150 A Office Battle North LLC 720 3 Office 720 3 2 21, 23
150 B / C Storage Tim D. 280 0 Office 280 0 1 24
150 D Light Ind. Brand On 450 0 Office 450 0 1 20
200 Res - 1 BD Chad W. 1200 2 Res -2 - Bd 1200 2 2 1, 2
210 Office vacent 300 2 Res -1 - Bd 650 2 1 6
220 Office vacent 230 1
230 Office Cougar Ridge Mgmt 250 1 Res -1 - Bd 550 2 1 8
240 vacent vacent 800 0 Res -2 - Bd 900 2 2 9, 10
250 /260 Res - 2 BD Barbara N 1075 2 Res -2 - Bd 1150 2 2 3, 16
270 Office CO Prefab 375 2 Res - Studio 450 2 1 17
280 Res - 1 BD Peter M 630 2 Res -1 - Bd 630 2 1 11
290 Res - Studio Don M 255 2 Res - Studio 255 2 1 12
Required Guest Spaces (1/5 MF units) 2 2 2 4, 7
Gross Parking required w/out shared deduction 28 30 25
Net Parking if Office Spaces are shared 16 Net Overnight Parking Required (office not 15

Added to 210 / 230

EXISTING PROPOSED

Unit #

101



the parking lot has been at or near capacity. This can be attributed to business using spaces during 
office hours (M-F, 9am-5pm) when tenants are typically working as well as most units not needing the 
number of spaces required by code.  Currently (except for the designated handicap space), the spaces 
are not designated.  All lease agreements include the number of spaces allowed for each unit. 
 
Proposed Conditions - With the conversion of the second-floor units to residential as well as eliminating 
some storage and promoting office on the first floor, a more active Parking Management Plan will be 
required.  The goal of the plan is to ensure all tenants have sufficient parking for their needs.  The 
conversion of the second-floor offices into residential units will increase the number of code required 
spaces by 2 to 30 (see “Proposed Parking Requirements” column in table above).  As allowed in Section 
16-16-70 of the Town codes, we are requesting that the Planning Director allow a reduction in parking 
capacity as shown in the “Parking Plan Allowance” column shown in the table above.   
 
Parking Management Strategies – In order to control parking at the building the Owners are proposing 
to institute the following management strategies: 

 Designate and label all spaces in the parking lot; 
 Designate specific spaces that are included within each unit’s lease (see last column on table 

above); 
 Add to lease agreements for office and commercial uses that overnight and weekend parking 

are not permitted without permission from the Owners and that their designated parking spaces 
may be used (during overnight and weekend) by residential guests; 

 Add to lease agreements for any storage units that designated parking spaces are not included 
in the lease and parking is limited to 2-hour intervals; 

 Ensure adequate snow removal in winter to prevent the loss of parking capacity: 
 Actively manage the parking lot on a regular basis (Owner representative is on site regularly). 

 
By adhering to the proposed Parking Management Strategies, we anticipate that the number of spaces 
on site is more than adequate.  By actively managing and dedicating specific spaces to each unit, no 
more than 25 spaces would be required in the unlikely event that every unit was parked at one time.  
During most times it is anticipated that less than two thirds of the spaces will be used at any one time as 
shown in the “Net Parking” row in the table above.  To arrive at this net parking figure, it has been our 
experience and we continue to anticipate that offices spaces (highlighted in red) will be unused outside 
of business hours (M- F,  9am – 5pm) and conversely residential spaces will be unused during business 
hours.  In the unlikely event that future parking requirements cannot be maintained as outlined above, 
the Owners would be more than willing to enter into an annual lease for additional spaces either in the 
Minturn municipal parking lot or directly with UPRR but hesitate to reserve these spaces unless they are 
necessary.   
 
Water – Town records show that the Property currently has reserved and is billed monthly for the 
equivalent of 6.8 Single Family Equivalents (“SFE”) of water usage.  Commercial buildings are often 
assigned an SFE equivalency based on the size of the water main that serves the building, the 
International Building is served by two separate mains (presumably as it was once two separate 
buildings), a 1-½” and ¾” main respectively.   On average, an SFE typically uses 6,000 gallons or more per 
month1.  Monthly water bills over the past year show that the International Building is using on average 
13,750 gallons per month, which is equivalent to approximately 2.3 SFEs worth of water, much lower 

 
1 Water System Capital Improvement Plan for the Town of Minturn by SGM, September 30, 2019, Section 2.3 page 
2-4 

102



than the Property is currently designated and being invoiced for. It is not anticipated that the 
conversion of five offices into four apartment units will have a significant effect on water usage at the 
building.  Three of the units are less than 750 square feet, the size at which the Town Code and Water 
Application refer to as an Accessory Unit which is equivalent to only 0.5 SFE.  Even if each of the 
converted residential units consumed a full SFE’s worth of water and there was no reduction in usage 
from the loss of five office units, the monthly usage would still be under the 6.8 SFEs that the building 
currently has. 
 
There are no proposed modifications to the exterior of the building, all proposed renovations will affect 
the interior only.  Upon approval of a Conditional Use permit, the applicant will complete final 
architectural drawings for building permit application.   
 
The following is provided to indicated adherence to Section 16-21-620.d.2 of the Town Code: 
 
(2) Criteria; findings. Before acting on a conditional use permit application, the Planning 

Commission and Town Council shall consider the following factors with respect to the proposed 
use: 

 
a) The relationship and impact of the use on the community development objectives of the Town.  

Old Town provides for low-impact retail/commercial and residential uses that support and 
enhance the friendly small town character. The continued use of the historic International 
Building as a mixed use property with residential and office / light industrial will continue to 
meet the objectives of the Town and adhere to the intent of this Character area. 
 

b) The effect of the use on distribution of population, transportation, utilities, schools, parks and 
recreational facilities and other public facilities and public facility needs. 
As this use has occurred at this site for decades, the continued use and conversion of several 
units to apartments is not anticipated to have any measurable effect on any of the uses outlined 
above. 
 

c) The effect upon traffic, with particular reference to congestion, automotive and pedestrian 
safety, traffic flow and control, access, maneuverability and snow removal. 
As there is no increase in size or area of useable space at the Property, it is not anticipated that 
there will be any discernable effects on traffic.  Converting five offices to four residential units 
may actually reduce traffic as the residential units being in the Town core often walk, or use 
bikes or public transportation to commercial areas all of which are within one to two blocks of 
the Property. 
 

d) The effect upon the character of the area in which the proposed use is to be located, including 
the scale and bulk of the proposed use in relation to surrounding uses, the amount of noise, 
lighting and glare, dust and compatibility of the use with the Character Area it is in and 
surrounding areas. 
 
Since there will be no change to the exterior of the building and all existing and proposed uses 
are allowed in this character area and will continue (albeit to a marginally different degree) as 
well as the fact that the surrounding uses include residential it does not appear that there will be 
any noticeable effect upon the character of the area.  As no exterior changes to the building are 
anticipated, there will be no effect on noise, lighting, glare, or dust. 

103



e) Necessary findings. The Planning Commission and Town Council shall make the following 
findings before making a recommendation or decision that a conditional use permit be granted: 
 

a. That the proposed location of the use is in accordance with the purposes of this 
Chapter, the Community Plan and the purposes of the zone in which the site is located. 
 

b. That the proposed location of the use and the conditions under which it would be 
operated or maintained will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, 
or materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity. 

 
c. That the proposed use will comply with each of the applicable provisions of this 

Chapter. 
 
   
 

104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION MEMO 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

Date:  May 6, 2022 

 

To:  Minturn Planning Commission 

 

From:  Madison Harris, Planner I 

 

Re:  Planning Department Update 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Historic Preservation 

The Third Historic Preservation Committee meeting was held on April 28, 2022. Staff had some 

remaining questions that they needed clarification on before they could bring the completed draft 

ordinance to the Planning Commission. That draft ordinance, in the form of a new Chapter 19 in 

the Minturn Municipal Code, will be brought before the Planning Commission at the second 

meeting in May, and then go before Town Council in June. 

 

Minturn North PUD 

The Town Council held a public hearing on May 5, 2022 for Minturn North PUD. After listening 

to the presentation by the Applicant, and the public comment by those that attended and those 

that submitted their comments beforehand. The Council asked questions of the Applicant and 

Town staff, and ultimately decided to refer the application back to the Planning Commission due 

to the Application having changed substantially from what the Planning Commission originally 

reviewed and made findings on.  

Minturn Planning Department 

Minturn Town Center 

301 Boulder St. #309 

Minturn, CO 81645 

970-827-5645 

planner1@minturn.org 

www.minturn.org  

Minturn Planning Commission 

Chair – Lynn Teach 

Jeff Armistead 

Michael Boyd 

Elliot Hovey 

Tom Priest 

 

113

mailto:planner1@minturn.org
http://www.minturn.org/

	PC Agenda 05-11-22
	Planning Commission Minutes 04-26-2022
	Appointment of Vice Chair Memo_050622
	Saloon Changes to Approved Plans
	Changes to Approved Plans Saloon Memo_050622
	Application
	05_01_02_Letter of Intent-4.19.22 DRB
	Vicinity Map
	Saloon Elevations with Updated Sheet
	05_01_09_Preliminary Building Plans and Elevations-PAA - 4.19.22 DRB Set.pdf
	Sheets
	A0.00 - COVER
	A0.04 - EXISTING ILC
	A0.05 - EXISTING SURVEY
	A0.06 - SITE PLAN
	A1.00 - ROOF PLAN
	A1.02 - LEVEL 1- PROPOSED
	A2.02 - EAST ELEVATION
	A2.03 - SOUTH ELEVATION
	A2.04 - WEST ELEVATION


	PAA - 5.4.22 Saloon North Elevation Updated.pdf
	Sheets
	A2.01 - NORTH ELEVATION




	Wilson Garage
	76 Meek Avenue UPDATED Plan Review DRB Staff Report_050622
	Wilson Application
	Wilson Letter from Applicant
	Wilson Garage Remodel
	SD1 SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN
	A1.01 MAIN LEVEL FLOOR PLAN.pdf
	A2.01 BUILDING ELEVATIONS

	76 Meek Pictures
	76 Meek 1
	76 Meek 2
	76 Meek 3
	76 Meek 4
	76 Meek 5
	76 Meek 6


	386 Taylor New Home Actual
	832 Main Variance Actual
	165 Railroad CUP Actual
	Planning Department Update Memo_050622



